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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

i/ ~7 oHh
MBHE
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS BEEE
Audited results for the
year ended 30th April,
BENA=THIEFEZLEREE
2010 2009 Increase
—E-EF —ETNF 3N
Turnover (HKS'M) BEBAEET) 325 275 50
Profit (loss) for the year (HKS'M) 7K £F [Z 3% #| (B3 48)
(B &%) 23 (96) 119
Earning (loss) per share (HKS) IR & F(E8)CET) 0.03 (0.13) 0.16
EBITDA (HK$'M) (Note 1) EBITDA (& & & ) (K 5t 1) 37 an 48
(Audited) (Audited)
As at As at
30th April, 2010 30th April, 2009
(& #E %) (K E %)
R-E—ZF RZBEZNF Decrease
A=+H MmA=+AH e
Net debt gearing ratio (%) FERBEE R XK %)
(Note 2) (Kr7t2) NilREA 25% (25%)
Notes: it -
1. Earning (loss) before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (“EBITDA 1. BRE -FE -EREHEAF(EIE)

(LBITDA)") is computed as profit (loss) before tax plus depreciation, finance

costs, impairment losses, share of loss of an associate, interest income from
convertible preferred shares and losses arising from changes in fair value of
derivative financial instruments.

2. Net debt gearing ratio is defined as total debts, including borrowings, trust
receipt loans and bills payable less bank balances and cash over
shareholders'equity.

(TEBITDA (LBITDA)J) J5 LA B %% Ai i 7 (B518) -
MTE BMERAR HEBE 2EHEQ
AIBE - TRBREEARZANERARITE
CRIAQNFEESHELZBIETE -

FREEALRZEERERAB(BER
B ERWRIEE R RN R IR R R 1T 4
RBEHRABRRES -
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GEOGRAPHICAL LOCATIONS AND TURNOVER ANALYSIS
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GEOGRAPHICAL TURNOVER ANALYSIS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH APRIL, 2010
AND 2009 (%)
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
TRERE

BUSINESS REVIEW

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | hereby present to shareholders the
results of the Group for the year ended 30th April, 2010. | am pleased to
report that the Group achieved a turnaround in performance, recording
profit attributable to equity holders of HK$23 million. This was achieved by
managing our business prudently through the financial crisis since late
2008 and capturing opportunities which have arisen since the recovery of
the semiconductor market during the second half of the financial year of
2010.The Group experienced a decline in turnover driven by weakened
demand from customers throughout the supply chains of the
semiconductor industry during the first half of the financial year of 2010.
The Group also faced a shortage of skilled labour and materials needed to
realise the increase in turnover which resulted from the rebound in
demand for semiconductor and its related products boosted by the pick
up of demand for end market electronic devices and automobiles. Given
the turbulent operating environment, the Group has sharpened our focus
on seeking orders with higher margins, implementing stringent cost
control and streamlining operations to achieve better production yield,
shortened lead times and reduced wastage to achieve profitability. The
internal operational efficiencies were further enhanced by tight control on
labour expenses, consumables usage and strengthened material and
supply chain management to contain material costs. Furthermore, the
Group managed to generate positive operating cash inflow through better
management of working capital in inventory and effective management of
financial resources and liquidity. As markets improved, the Group has
quickly adapted to the growth momentum in the semiconductor industry
and performed satisfactorily in attaining positive earning and a
strengthened balance sheet with improved cash inflow.

¥ KOk

AANBUHRREEGAREREAEEHZ
TE-TZFNAZFTHLEFEZEZE - AA
fRAFE AEBEEEEBELE HEH
A A FEAEE ) A23,0000000% 7T 0 T 8 AR K
SR )\ FRYEBELRTCHEIUKREE
BEER YAFERBWMHER-_ZT K
FETH+<FEHURNEBEEKG R —F
FHRFELLXFH ARBKIEREMRE
Br2RFERRH MAEEZEBEANT
B-BETFRMRABEZHERMBE KB
By EBERELVEHEERZERNAMLEA &
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERWE

Thanks to the consistent efforts of our staff in the difficult economic
environment followed by a rebound in market demand for semiconductors
and leadframes, the Group reported a 18.2% of growth in turnover which
amounted to approximately HK$325 million (2009: HK$275 million) for the
year ended 30th April, 2010. As a result of the increase in turnover and
improvement in operational margin through various measures to
streamline operations and contain costs, the profit attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company amounted to HK$23 million, compared to a
consolidated loss of HK$96 million for the year ended 30th April, 2009.
Excluding non-operating items including the share-based payment of
HKS$3 million and the one-off loss arising from changes in fair value of
derivative financial instruments issued by ASAT of HKS1 million, the
adjusted profit attributable to equity shareholders was HK$27 million which
is approximately 8.3% of the turnover. Earning per share was HK$0.03 for
the financial year 2010 compared with a loss per share of HK$0.13 for the
financial year 2009. EBITDA, computed as earning before tax plus
depreciation, finance costs, impairment losses, share of loss of an associate,
interest income for convertible preferred shares and losses arising from
changes in fair value of derivative financial instruments, achieved a
turnaround as well, amounting to HK$37 million (2009: LBITDA of HK$11
million).

The return on equity stood at 23.2% as at 30th April, 2010 (2009: Nil). Due
to improved market sentiments, improved operating efficiency as
mentioned above and increasing demand for semiconductors and related
products, the Directors consider that no further impairment should be
made in respect of property, plant and equipment this year as opposed to
an impairment loss on property, plant and equipment of HK$50 million for
the year ended 30th April, 2009.

HE-_Z—ZTZFNA=Z1+HILFE"
TREBEERETEHZ - MLy EE
REGEMSBHBREM WAEEEEXSE
B AN18.2% & #7325,000,0007 ;L( — T T L F ¢
2750000008 70) c N BHEZ EHB G X B &
EEIRAZERSEEBREENBEEM
# 0 A A R)HE 25 A% R OFE k5 ) A 23,000,000
BT HE-_ZZAFUAZFTHILEFESL
8% 15 4% A 5 4896,000,00078 JT o 1B JEAL & 18
B (8 3& B 17 15 573,000,000 7T & £ {4k X F 2%
TTESRMTEARFEESHMEE—XBE
B1,0000008 L) B 2 Em R R EMCHAER
F] £ 27,000,0007 7T © 1§ & EREH83% —F —
THBRFECERAFNABIBETL ZTEZN
FBFESSESREBELZBIL -KRAFE -
TRIE - #T & K 4 51 & FI(EBITDAL - LABR B
REF  mirE MEKXA  REBE - 214
B AR EE TRBRELERZFBEKRAR
TEeMIARFEEZHELE ZEEFTE)
TR 5 A B 3E37,0000008 T(Z 2T N F
LBITDA /11,000,000 5 7T) °

B A

RZEBE-ZTEMA=1H KATDHX A
V2u(ZZFEZNF  E)c AR EXFTELz™
LRAMENKEERNRRER MEFEBER
EHERZERAREN EERE XF
ErzWE- HERXHEHEE - TRE H
E_ETNFNA=ZTHLEFERSEEDE
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERWE

Underpinned by a strong rebound in the electronics and semiconductor
industries in the PRC, the Group's sales performance in the PRC continued
to be encouraging. The PRC is the largest single market for the Group. Sales
to the PRC achieved a growth rate of 20%, amounting to HK$136 million
compared to HK$113 million in 2009. Driven by strengthened marketing
activities, sales to other Asian countries including Taiwan, Indonesia and
Thailand recorded a remarkable increase of 62% to HK$73 million
compared to HK$45 million in 2009.

Due to better usage of materials and enhancement of production yield, the
ratio of materials and consumables used to turnover improved to 47.1%
compared to 49.1% for the financial year 2009. The ratio of the other
expenses and staff costs to turnover has reduced to 23.4% and 22.8%
respectively for the financial year 2010, from 30.9% and 27.6% respectively
for the financial year 2009. In order to tackle inflationary pressure on the
PRC operations and the appreciation of Renminbi, the Group introduced
various measures to contain labour overhead and other operating
expenses and the resulting improvements in operating efficiency
contributed to the positive operating margin and net profit compared to
the net loss incurred in the last financial year.

As the Group generated a net cash inflow of HK$26 million from operating
activities and settled borrowings of HKS 14 million, the Group's gearing
ratio, calculated as bank and other borrowings less cash and cash
equivalents divided by shareholder’s equity as at 30th April, 2010 was
reduced to nil to achieve a net cash position compared to 25% as at 30th
April, 2009. Shareholder’s funds increased from approximately HK$73
million as at 30th April, 2009 to approximately HK$99 million as at 30th
April, 2010.

FEEFRYFYEEBTELARES BPEE
B HEEERTE8 AR ALXE
BeEARE—ME RNPEHKESZHEHEERE
£20% * 3£ 136,0000008 7T —EZNF B
113,000,000 7T M S E /E B E N - HF E
HENER(BREEE DEERFH)ZHEE
= T T 1 F 24500000078 T 8 E L F62%
273,000,000 JT ©

MREEZRME I EAEER B &
BVRAEEERHEEEIHERRA_TT

BB FE Z24.% R EZ471%  HBE TR E
ITHRAHZER I ERER ST LT RF
B D R309% &276%RHE T —ZSUHRFES
B123.4% K 228% ° BAFHRE T BEEKER 2B
REORBRAARBEABEE ~£EC#
B2 E e AEHREEYS TRARE MK
EHRY BEAMRELERER EHBIERLE
SRE R F— @B KFE RS EE
FER o

HRAEBEEREERELER S RAFE
26,000,0007 7T+ h1 £ B & 18 & B 14,000,000 7%
M AEEAREEALEEN-_ZE—FF
MA=Z+tHZROTKEMEERRS KRS
SEYVKRUBREEZTE)REE  LESH
MR FBE R_ZETAFNA=1THEAA
X% - WRELB _ZTEZTNFHNA=Z+HZ
#373,0000008B L E T —ZTFMWAHA =+ H
2 #799,000,0007% TT °
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERWwE

INTEREST IN ASSOCIATE — ASAT

Reference is made to the Company’s announcement dated 3rd January,
2010 that the Board of Directors of ASAT Holdings Limited ("ASAT") had
reached an agreement (the "Agreement”) with United Test and Assembly
Center, Ltd. or its affiliates ("UTAC"), to sell to UTAC all the shares in ASAT
Limited, ASAT's wholly owned subsidiary, which is itself the indirect parent
of ASAT Semiconductor (Dongguan) Limited, the only operating subsidiary
of ASAT, at a consideration of approximately US$45 million, subject to a
downward post-closing adjustment of up to USS$S5 million. As part of the
proposed transaction, UTAC also purchased the rights to inter-company
loans that have been made by ASAT and New ASAT (Finance) Limited
("ASAT Finance”) to ASAT Limited. ASAT Finance is a direct subsidiary of
ASAT Limited and the issuer of the US$150 million principal amount of
9.25% senior notes due 2011 (the “Existing Notes”) that have been
guaranteed by ASAT. ASAT Limited intended to transfer the outstanding
shares of ASAT Finance to ASAT prior to completion of the sale, such that
ASAT Finance would become a direct subsidiary of ASAT and will not be
transferred to UTAC as part of the transactions set forth above (the “Sale
Process”).

On 5th February, 2010, ASAT announced that in response to the consent
solicitation issued by ASAT Finance on 25th January, 2010, it had received
consents from holders owning 59.05% in principal amount of the Existing
Notes to amend the indenture governing the Existing Notes and it had
completed the sale of all the shares in ASAT Limited to Global A&T
Electronics Ltd., the nominee and the immediate parent of UTAC. On 12th
February, 2010, ASAT announced that at a duly convened extraordinary
general meeting of its shareholders held on 11th February, 2010, the
shareholders of ASAT passed resolutions to place ASAT into voluntary
liquidation and appoint joint voluntary liquidators to implement the
liquidation. On 25th March, 2010, the Supervision of the Grand Court of
Cayman Islands granted the orders for the voluntary liquidations of the
ASAT and also appointed the liquidators. The Group's interest in an
associate was transferred to available-for-sale investments as it was no
longer able to exercise significant influence over the associate upon the
commencement of voluntary liquidations of ASAT.

The disposal of ASAT Limited has not had any material impact on the
Company's consolidated financial statements. Following the completion of
the Sale Process, UTAC Hong Kong Ltd. (formerly ASAT Limited) became an
independent third party of the Group. As at the date hereof, the Group
continues to conduct arms-length business transactions with UTAC Hong
Kong Ltd. and its subsidiaries. The Group also continues to receive purchase
orders from UTAC Hong Kong Ltd. and its subsidiaries and the Group
receives settlements from UTAC Hong Kong Ltd and its subsidiaries
according to relevant agreed credit terms.

12
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERWwE

The Group held 43.22% of ASAT with nil carrying value as at 24th March,
2010.The Group has discontinued the recognisition of its share of losses of
ASAT up to 24th March, 2010. No preferred share dividend declared or paid
by ASAT.

OUTLOOK

Looking forward to the next financial year, the management remains
cautiously optimistic that we will see continued growth momentum for
our business. Order bookings in the first quarter of the financial year ending
30th April, 2011 remains satisfactory compared to the second half of the
financial year in 2010. The semiconductor market is performing
satisfactorily despite uncertainties over current economic developments.
The Group continues to focus on both existing and potential customers in
the PRC and other East Asian markets where robust electronic and
automobile industries have triggered growth of the semiconductor market.
The prevailing stimulus policy of the Chinese government in IT
infrastructure, household appliances and automobiles is expected to have
a positive impact on the domestic consumption of semiconductors.
Improving consumer confidence in emerging markets is also expected to
boost demand for consumer electronic products in various end market
segments throughout 2010 and the first half of 2011

The Group will implement further measures to improve our production
yield and quality assurance, enlarge product mix and technical capabilities
to capture increasing demand for semiconductors and leadframes for the
buoyant domestic PRC and East Asian consumer electronic markets.
Looking ahead, the Group continues to place our priority on strengthening
our relationships with customers, vendors and other stakeholders to pave
the way for future business growth and greater profitability. To better serve
our existing customers and to develop new markets, we will allocate
internal resources to strengthen new product offerings and the variety of
valued-added products with satisfactory margins to cater for different
market segments and requirements. New production technologies and
better production management skills will be adopted to improve our
production yield and delivery lead times to provide premium services to
customers.

On the operating environment, facing the shortage of skilled labour and
accelerating inflation and appreciation of Renminbi, the Group will step up
its efforts to maintain flexibility in relation to operating scale and stringent
control on material usage and operating expenses to relieve the pressure
on our margins. The Group will also uphold prudent financial management
policies to further improve our working capital and to enhance cash inflow
to maintain a sound balance sheet.

We are confident in facing the business challenges ahead and will strive
our best to provide satisfactory returns for our shareholders.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERWwE

FINANCIAL REVIEW

During the year under review, the Group continued to maintain sound
liquidity via adoption of prudent financial management policies. The Group
was in a net cash position as at 30th April, 2010 due to an increase in net
cash inflow from operating activities of HK$26 million and the settlement
of borrowings of HK$ 14 million in the financial year of 2010. As at 30th
April, 2010, the Group's total outstanding debts of HK$18 million (2009:
HKS$31 million) comprised of HKS3 million (2009: HKS3 million) of trust
receipt loans and bill payables, nil (2009: HK$12 million) of other secured
bank loan, HK$4 million of unsecured bank loan (2009: HK$6 million), HKS 1
million of obligation under finance lease (2009: Nil) and HK$10 million
(2009: HK$10 million) of loan from a director. In terms of interest bearing
obligations, HK$8 million (2009: HK$21 million) was interest bearing and
HKS$10 million (2009: HKS 10 million) was interest free.

The current ratio of the Group, calculated by dividing the total current
assets by the total current liabilities, improved further to approximately
1.62:1 as at 30th April, 2010 (2009: approximately 1.29:1).

DISTRIBUTION

The directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
year (2009: Nil).

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 30th April, 2010, plant and equipment with a carrying value of HK$5
million (2009: HK$24 million) were pledged to secure certain banking
facilities and bank loan granted to the Group. The Group's obligation under
a finance lease is secured by the lessor’s charge over the leased assets.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

During the year ended 30th April, 2010, the Group invested around HK$8
million (2009: HKS$6 million) in acquiring property, plant and equipment.
This capital expenditure was financed mainly from internal financial
resources.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERWwE

EMPLOYEES AND EMOLUMENT POLICY

As at 30th April, 2010, the Group employed approximately 1,364 employees
(2009: 1,180 employees). The increase in headcount was in line with the
improved business turnover compared to the 2009 financial year. The
Group maintained its remuneration policy comprising salary and other
benefits including a share option scheme as an integral part of the Total
Quality Management.

The emoluments of the directors and senior management of the Company
are determined by the Remuneration Committee and approved by the
Board, having regard to their individual duties and responsibilities with the
Company, remuneration benchmarks in the industry and prevailing market
conditions.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the board, | would like to take this opportunity to express our
sincere gratitude to all staff for their hard work and passion towards the
Group and the unwavering commitment from our customers and
shareholders to the Group over the years.

By Order of the Board

Li Tung Lok
Chairman

Hong Kong, 9th August, 2010

EERMSEE

RZZE—ZFTFWNA=+H " AEEERL1364
FZRE(ZCZEZENF 1180 REE) BT
NEHBRFELE  EE AR MNIEEESEE
FIENMEE B - ANEEEEF=THSBUX
REHFSLEREASSESHEMEN EA2

mEEEZ D

ARREFEREREBABZHAFHNE
BEeREERERARAZBERNBE 17X
FMEERERETRAMREMBESSIE -

&)
AANERREFZEHUERERNEZBETIRA
SEFLZEEEMEAIXBRUNRLAE
VTEUBRHAEEEPEBRREFRBENIX

# o

p

EKEEGT

a

FE
FE%

&% —2-2E/\ANE

15



QPL International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2010 £ 3%

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEFLEMREEAEBAER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Li Tung Lok, aged 58, is the founder of the Group. Mr. Li has been an
Executive Director and Executive Chairman of the Board since January
1989. Mr. Li has also served as the Chief Executive Officer of the Company
since December 2008. He is also a member of Remuneration Committee of
the Company. He has a B. Sc. Degree in Chemical Engineering and over 27
years of experience in servicing the semiconductor industry.

Mr. Phen Hoi Ping Patrick, aged 40, has been an Executive Director since
December 2008. Mr. Phen obtained his bachelor's degree in Engineering
from Loughborough University of Technology, Loughborough, United
Kingdom. Mr. Phen has over eighteen years of experience in semiconductor
sales, services and supplies management through his previous
employment with different companies in Hong Kong. Prior to joining the
Group in 2001, Mr. Phen had worked as a Customer Services Engineer and
then a Deputy Director, Account Management of ASAT Limited, a
subsidiary of ASAT Holdings Limited which is an associated company of the
Group during 1991 to 1996, and then from 1996 to 2001 was a Sales
Director at SMI Limited, a subsidiary of SDI Corporation, a company
incorporated in Taiwan and listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Robert Charles Nicholson, aged 54, has been an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company since October 1994. He is also the
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit
Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company.

Mr. Nicholson qualified as a solicitor in England and Wales in 1980 and in
Hong Kong in 1982. He was a senior partner of Richards Butler from 1985 to
2001 where he established the corporate and commercial department. He
has had wide experience in corporate finance and cross border
transactions, including mergers and acquisitions, regional
telecommunications, debt and equity capital markets, corporate
reorganizations and privatizations of stated-owned enterprises in the
People's Republic of China.

Mr. Nicholson was a senior advisor to the Board of Directors of PCCW
Limited, a Hong Kong-listed company, between August 2001 and
September 2003. He is an Independent Non-executive Director of Pacific
Basin Shipping Limited (a Hong Kong-listed company), a Non-executive
Director of India Capital Growth Fund Limited (listed on the AIM market of
London Stock Exchange) since November 2005 and an Executive Director
of First Pacific Company Limited (a Hong Kong-based and Hong Kong-
listed investment and management company with principal business
interests related to telecommunications, infrastructure, consumer food
products and natural resources) since June 2003. He also serves as a
Commissioner of PT Indofood Sukses Makmur Tbk (a subsidiary of First
Pacific listed in Indonesia), and as a director of First Pacific’s associated
company in the Philippines, Metro Pacific Investments Corporation, Philex
Mining Corporation, Pitkin Petroleum Plc, Forum Energy Plc and Level Up!
International Holdings Pte Ltd.

16

BITES
EEMLE BESE AAERZHIHA -
BhEE—NANF—BERBERRARZH
FEEREFRNTER -TALAEA-TT
JE+ = AR R IE AR T 1T A - B
AXARFMEBRRE  REELETR
BELEB RS LEBTEBIF-

EEYEE RF4m BE_ZTZTNF+ =
ARHERTEE - EAEFEEREN KA
PRFRETRELEBNM -THRELERSD
BERAR) RY¥EREE REIEBET
BFEHESASEFLER N_TET-—FNAR
SEHA EEER—NANL—"FE-—NAALARF
HEZEBREAXBEERARN(RNERZ
% % X Bl ASAT Holdings Limited Z Ki & 2 7)) Z
EEFRBIEM HLTalBegE - HEgR
—ANANFEZZEZT —F HESMI Limited (R
BETMRKIEREGERFSFRSHM LT 2R
EITEROERAAIZHMBLARHEHEE-

BAFHATES
BREERE HAEM4m R NAAEOF+ A
ESARBBYATEST R /ARA
FMEzEexXF ERZEERRERZES
ZE B °

REER-—NANTFREFRBE BT H
XEMER RBER-NAN_FREEEH
XEMER -R—NAN\AFE_TT—FMH"
RAEBEREMTZERERA RRTZ
CEMBEEIEZBRABA - BELXRE
AEREXZBRKREBERAMH HMEEM &
BREATSERS CREARBBHPEA
RAMBBECALBLETAHREEBTLR -

REENR_ZZE-FNAZ_ZTT=FNA
HEEEES LT AREMABNBRAAE

EaMBER -BAREBE LT RARKNTF
MESEARARZBEIIFNTEE B =
TERF+ - AERBRABFIRIMAZER
& T % £ ™ ZIndia Capital Growth Fund Limited 3£
HITEE B_ZET=ZF~AERE—KF
ERAFI(ZBERBECZCEBLTRAEARE
BRAA T2XEKEZREEN EE HE
RmERRERBBIZHITEEF - RNEE
B — KFA N ZIEREE RS A 7lMetro Pacific
Investments Corporation * Philex Mining Corporation
Pitkin Petroleum Plc * Forum Energy Plc % Level Up!
International Holdings Pte Ltd Z E =5 ©



BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EZNERERABREAER

Mr. Sze Tsai To Robert, aged 69, has been an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company since April 2000. He is also the Chairman of the
Audit Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee of the Company.

Mr. Sze is a fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and was
a partner in an international firm of accountants with which he practised
for over 20 years. He is an Independent Non-executive Director of a number
of Hong Kong listed companies.

Mr. Wong Chun Bong Alex, aged 51, has been an Independent non-
Executive Director of the Company since April 2000. He is also the
Chairman of the Nomination Committee and a member of the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the Company.

Mr. Wong is a certified public accountant in Hong Kong, and is the
proprietor of C.B. Wong & Co. Certified Public Accountants. He was the
Chairman of the Executive Committee of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants (ACCA) Hong Kong in 1999/2000. He also served as a
member of the Inland Revenue Department Users' Committee from 1998
to 2003. He has over 27 years' experience in auditing, taxation, accounting
and financial management. Mr. Wong is currently an Independent Non-
executive Director of World Wide Touch Technology (Holdings) Limited, a
Hong Kong listed company (stock code: 1282).

COMPANY SECRETARY
Ms. Lam Cho Yuk Lily, aged 47, joined the Group since April 2002 and
was appointed as the Company Secretary of the Company in March 2006.

Ms. Lam is a fellow member of the Chartered Association of Certified
Accountants and an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. She holds a B.Sc. Degree in Accounting and
Statistics from University of Southampton and a M. Sc. Degree in
Management Science from Imperial College of Science and Technology,
University of London.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Kwan Chi Kin Wallace, aged 40, joined the Group since December
2008 as the Group Financial Controller. Mr. Kwan holds a Bachelor of Social
Science Degree from The Chinese University of Hong Kong. He also holds a
Master of Business Administration Degree from the University of
Manchester and a Master of Laws in Corporate & Financial Law from The
University of Hong Kong. He is an associate of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and also a fellow of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Kwan has over 18 years of experience
in financial management and internal control with listed companies and an
international audit firm.
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DIRECTORS'REPORT
HESHE

The Board of Directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30th April, 2010.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company.

The principal activities of its subsidiaries are the manufacture and sale of
integrated circuit leadframes, heatsinks and stiffeners and investment
holding.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 30th April, 2010 are set out in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on page 41.The
directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend and propose that
the profit for the year be retained.

SHARE CAPITAL

Movements in the share capital of the Company during the year are set out
in Note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY
The Company did not have reserves available for distribution to
shareholders at 30th April, 2010.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the contributed
surplus account of the Company is available for distribution. However, the
Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of
the contributed surplus if:

0) itis, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as
they become due; or

(ii) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the
aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share
premium accounts.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
During the year, the Group acquired property, plant and equipment at an
aggregate cost of HK$8 million.

Details of this and other movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the year are set out in Note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 30th April, 2010, the percentages of the Group’s
turnover and purchases attributable to its major customers and suppliers
are as follows:

Turnover attributable to: Fr {h & 3£ %8
Largest customer BEREP
Five largest customers hREP

Purchases attributable to: FFr {7 B8 58
Largest supplier B At ER
Five largest suppliers hREER

As described in Note 15 to the consolidated financial statements, ASAT
Holdings Limited ("ASAT") has completed the sales of all the shares of ASAT
Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of ASAT to an independent third party
on 4th February, 2010. ASAT Limited has no longer to be the subsidiary of
ASAT and has changed its name to be UTAC Hong Kong Limited. As a
result, no director, an associate of a director or a shareholder of the
Company have an interest in the largest customer of the Company. During
the year, the largest customer represented UTAC Hong Kong Limited
(formerly known as ASAT Limited) and its subsidiary. Details of the
transactions between the Group and ASAT and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as "ASAT group”) are set out in Note 36 to the consolidated
financial statements. In the opinion of the directors, such transactions were
carried out on terms no less favourable than terms available to
independent third parties.

Save as aforementioned, at no time during the year did a director, an
associate of a director or a shareholder of the Company (which to the
knowledge of the directors of the Company owned more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) have an interest in any of the Group’s five
largest customers or suppliers.
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DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report are:

Executive directors
Mr. Li Tung Lok (Executive Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Phen Hoi Ping Patrick

Independent non-executive directors
Mr. Robert Charles Nicholson

Mr. Sze Tsai To Robert

Mr.Wong Chun Bong Alex

Pursuant to bye-law 102A of the Bye-laws of the Company, Mr. Phen Hoi
Ping Patrick, being an executive Director, and Mr. Robert Charles Nicholson,
being an independent non-executive Director, will retire from office at the
AGM and, being eligible, have offered themselves for re-election.

As the executive Chairman of the Board, Mr. Li Tung Lok is not, by virtue of
Bermuda law, subject to retirement by rotation. However, in order to
comply with the Code Provision A.4.2 of the CG Code, which stipulates that
every director should be subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years, Mr. Li Tung Lok has agreed to voluntarily retire and be
re-elected at least once every three years. At the annual general meeting of
the Company held on 5th October, 2009, Mr. Li Tung Lok voluntarily retired
from office and was re-elected as an executive Director. Mr. Li Tung Lok
continues to act as the Chairman of the Board.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

At 30th April, 2010, the interests of the directors of the Company and their
associates in the share capital and underlying shares attached to share
options and warrants of the Company or any of its associated corporations
as recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO") or as otherwise notified
to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock

EEEARORNEERG 2ES

R-ZZE-—ZFOA=1+H ARAAREZE

KB EGOI(TE %5 R BB &P H 352 M &
YZBLAMAE ARAREZE KRS 2
BATHEAARL A NEE A BB EEZ B
Ko B8 PR B R BB RE PP AR BE B {0 2 R s
ARBEEMARXIAARIB(H A

Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by FAELEFMRATLEMRADAE LT RAFE
Directors of Listed Companies of the Rules Governing the Listing of FEETEFRHGZEETREMNMEERARAR
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) of the issued share BTz EmT

capital of the Company were as follows:

(@) Long position in shares and underlying shares of the (@) A2XTIROREBROGZHFR
Company

Number of issued ordinary shares/underlying shares of the Company

ARECRTEER HHEROHE

Percentage of
the issued
share capital
Personal Family Corporate of the
Name of director interests interests interests Company
R NN
ERITRAE
Exng BARER XEER ZEA K
Mr. Li Tung Lok TR %L E
- Ordinary shares -BEALERK
inissue 273,794,282 3,000,000 18,590,944 295,385,226 3849%
(Note a) (Note b)
(ff#ta) (Htitp)
Mr.Phen Hoi Ping Patrick /8 F & 4
- Unlisted share option —FEmERE 3,060,000 - - 3,060,000 0.40%
Mr. Sze Tsai To Robert SERELE
— Unlisted share option —JEEMERE 510,000 - - 510,000 0.07%
Mr. Robert Charles RaBf4t
Nicholson —JE LR R
- Unlisted share option 510,000 - - 510,000 0.07%
Mr.Wong Chun Bong Alex T 1 F8 55 4
- Unlisted share option - LT R 510,000 - - 510,000 0.07%
Notes: okza
(@) The family interests of 3,000,000 shares represent the interest of (@) KRB 2 3,000000% &5 T =R 44 % 4 2
the wife of Mr. Li Tung Lok, ET -
(b) Mr. Li Tung Lok wholly owns Solar Forward Company Limited, (b) Z[A) 42 5 4 2 & ¥ B 2 Solar Forward Company

which owns 18,590,944 shares of the Company. Limited £ A 78 & 718,590,944 A% & 17
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DIRECTORS’INTERESTS IN SHARES AND

EEEARORNEERG 2ES

UNDERLYING SHARES (continued) (%&)
(b)  Long position in shares and underlying shares of an b) HEZIBEz2RORMEBEBR®G ZHF
associated corporation )

Number of issued ordinary shares/underlying shares of ASAT

BRI ZERTEER/HEROHE

Percentage of
the issued
Personal Family Corporate share capital
Name of director interests interests interests of ASAT
16 84Kk X
BET
& 2
Bat
Mr. Li Tung Lok TRLESE
- Ordinary shares —BETEBER
inissue 1,448,010 - - 1,448,010
- Unlisted share options ~ —3JE |- 77 B AR 4% 2,500,000 - - 2,500,000
- Unlisted warrants —EEMRREE
(Note) (ft:2) 41,800,000 - - 41,800,000
45,748,010 - - 45,748,010 5.66%

Note:  On 28th February, 2008, Mr. Li Tung Lok was granted a
compensation award in form of a warrant to purchase an

Mat: RZZEENFAZ+NA - £K
XMEREEERERBRESE F
BEAEREBEETERXBET

exercise price of USD0.01 per ordinary shares, subject to certain PR cFrEm  ZmELET

adjustments, in consideration for his past and ongoing services as BARAREFIRT R I @ AR0TE T

the Acting Chief Executive Officer of ASAT. The warrant will be ZITEEBMRFAR)BAZRZA R

exercisable with respect to 20,600,000 ordinary shares immediately, 41,800,000 A% %4 ik 3 2 & @ AR o A] BI

178 2 R % % 78 % 120,600,000 f%

Bk HBRANAZIETEBXE

WEAFHAR - RREBHER-Z

——FZ_A—BER THZIE

W ORI R DA R E A R R R R

RR -

aggregate of up to 41,800,000 ordinary shares of ASAT at an

with the remainder subject to certain vesting or performance
criteria. The warrant will expire on 1st February, 2011 and will be
subject to adjustments and other terms and conditions contained
therein.

BAXBEEENEEUNEENAREEE
BRRABKEMNBAR ZRNDIN R2F—F
FUA=+H ARBEEF TETHAER
ARECHEALBRERE AR LEMEM
HEZE(EERESFLBMERD) 2 EME
FROTETRZEMBEIXE -

Save as disclosed herein and for shares in subsidiaries held by the directors
in trust for their immediate holding companies, at 30th April, 2010, none of
the directors or chief executives of the Company, nor their associates, had
any interest or short position in any securities or derivative of the Company
or any of its associated corporations as defined in the SFO.
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SHARE OPTIONS B IR

(@) The Company (@ XRF
Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme are set out in RAREREFEFBEIERNEES VB
Note 35 to the consolidated financial statements. 2R BT EE35 o
The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share TRXEBEESELREEMERALNARE
options granted to the directors and employees during the year: iR Rz EE

Outstanding Movements during the year Outstanding
at 15t May, EREH at30th April,

Date of grant 2009 Granted Exercised Forfeited 2010 Exercise Period
iy i

S ki —g-%f
ifA-H 1A
CESL BfiE RN HAGE

Category T: Directors

F-H:E%
Mr.Phen Hoi Ping Patrick ~ 11th May, 2007 1,200,000 - - - 1,200,000 18th May, 2007 -
10th May, 2012
(2R ZZREERAT-H “ERLERATNAE
ZE-ZERATH
11th May, 2007 600,000 - - - 600,000 18th May, 2008 -
10th May, 2012
“Z2ZrFRA+-H “EE \ERATNRE
ZT-ZFRATH
3rd December, 2009 - 840,000 - - 840,000 10th December, 2009 -
2nd December, 2014
“ZINFTZAZA —EENET-RtBE
ZF-mE+ZARZAH
3rd December, 2009 - 420,000 - - 420,000 3rd December, 2010~
2nd December, 2014
ZERAETZAZH —Z-T+-fFZHZ
—Z-mE+ZRAZH
Mr. Sze Tsai To Robert 11th May, 2007 200,000 - - - 200,000 14th May, 2007 -
10th May, 2012
SBEBEE ZZTEFERAT A “EZLFRATHRAZ
—Z--£7A+A
11th May, 2007 100,000 - - - 100,000 14th May, 2008 -
10th May, 2012
ZETLERAT A ZZE\ERATHEAZE
ZE-Z5RATH
3rd December, 2009 - 140,000 - - 140,000 8th December, 2009 -
2nd December, 2014
ZERAETZRAZH ZEEAETZANAE
—Z-mE+ZRAZH
3rd December, 2009 - 70,000 - - 70,000 3rd December, 2010~
2nd December, 2014
“ZZNETZAZA “Z-ZET-AZAZE
ZZ-mFE+ZAZH
Mr. Robert Charles 11th May, 2007 200,000 - - - 200,000 14th May, 2007 -
Nicholson 10th May, 2012
PREXE ZETLERAT A “EZtFRRTNEE
ZE-ZFERATH
11th May, 2007 100,000 - - - 100,000 14th May, 2008 -
10th May, 2012
“ZTLERAT-H “ZZ\FRATHEZE
ZE-ZFRATH
3rd December, 2009 - 140,000 - - 140,000 10th December, 2009 -
2nd December, 2014
“ZZNETZAZA ZZTNEFTZA+HE
ZZ-mFE+ZAZH
3rd December, 2009 - 70,000 - - 70,000 3rd December, 2010 -
2nd December, 2014
“ZTNFETZAZA “Z-ZE+T-AZHZE
ZE-METZAZH
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SHARE OPTIONS (continued) iR
(@) The Company (continued) (@ A2QFE)

Outstanding Movements during the year Outstanding
at 1st May, ERNEEH at 30th April,

Date of grant 2009 Granted Exercised Forfeited 2010 Exercise Period
iy i

ZERNE —g-%%
5A-A mA=+A
BHAY HRE RN HARR

Category T: Directors

(continued)
F-EEZ(H)
Mr.Wong Chun Bong 11th May, 2007 200,000 - - - 200,000 18th May, 2007 -
Alex 10th May, 2012
ITHEALE ZETLERAT-H “EZ+FRATN\EBE
ZT-ZERATH
11th May, 2007 100,000 - - - 100,000 18th May, 2008 -
10th May, 2012
“ZTrERAT-H “ZZ\¥RA+N\BE
—E--f7AtH
3rd December, 2009 - 140,000 - - 140,000 7th December, 2009 -
2nd December, 2014
ZETAFETZA=H ZETAFEFTZRLHE
“Z-mE+-ZAZAH
3rd December, 2009 - 70,000 - - 70,000 3rd December, 2010 -
2nd December, 2014
K s ZZ-ZF+T-AZHZ
ZE-METZAZH
Total
@it 2,700,000 1,890,000 - - 4590000
Category 2
g8
Eligible employees 11th May, 2007 10,950,000 - - (1,950,000) 9,000,000 14th May, 2007 -
10th May, 2012
REKEE “ETLERAT-H “ZZ+FRRTNEE
ZE-ZFRATH
11th May, 2007 5,475,000 - - (975,000) 4,500,000 14th May, 2008 -
10th May, 2012
“ZTrERA+-H “ZE\FRATMEE
ZT-ZFRATH
3rd December, 2009 - 11,733,167 (20,000) (182,667) 11,530,500 3rd December, 2009 -
2nd December, 2014
ZETAETZA=H ZTTAFEFZRAZHE
“F-mE+-ZAZAH
3rd December, 2009 - 5,866,583 - (91,333) 5,775,250 3rd December, 2010 -
2nd December, 2014
ZEEAFTZAZH —Z-F5+-A=HZ
“E-NETZAZH
19,125,000 19,489,750 (20,000) (3,199,000) 35395750
The closing price of the Company’s shares immediately before 3rd RARIBRODREE_ZTLFT A
December, 2009, the date of grant of the share options, was “HAIELEREREIE B 2K
HK$0.47. MEE47HBTT
The weighted average closing price of the Company’s shares RKARRMREEZEBRERITEE B
immediately before the date on which the options were exercised Al 2 In#E F U B B 0558 T ©
was HKS$0.55.
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SHARE OPTIONS (continued) BB IR B
(b)  Associated corporation (b) ABEEE
Pursuant to a stock option exchange program offered by ASAT in BIBEBEEXATFEMR L ZBRE
prior years, 2,500,000 new stock options were granted to Mr. Li RP|FE ZRLTER_ZTZT=ZF
Tung Lok on 29th August, 2003, as follows: J\A =+ 71 B #3$%2,500,00017 7 88 A% # -
FBEWT

Vesting period Number of
from vesting ordinary share

commencement Subscription options

DE] date (i.e. price per outstanding at

Date of grant acceptance Date of expiry 24th August, 2001) ordinary share 30th April, 2010
BEBRKEH R-B-2F

(M=%FT-F MA=+H8H

NAEZ=+@mA)#s BREBR AIEZER

&% B # 2ERE ZABE iR H B

29th August, 2003 27th October, 2003 28th August, 2013 1year 0288 2,500,000
“ETZHF —ET=F —E-Z=F —F
NAZ+H +A=++H NAZ+NH

No options were exercised during the year. FRAMEEREREITE-
ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR BERODABSF 228
DEBENTURES
Other than the share option scheme and warrants as described in the RIZEEHEERORBBERND ZEZ] R

sections headed "Directors’ Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares”and fR #E | P B0 Pt 2 R AR RE Gt B R R AR AERE A
“Share Options’, at no time during the year was the Company or any of its NN e e G = /A B S A R s G S A T i
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the B2EIMNTH FARAEZAEBALR
Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or NAIHEMEMEABEE RO ESME
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate, and none ofthe  # ' MEEE T ETHBAE  HE 2B B
directors or chief executives, nor their spouses or children under the age of 183X A T 2 F X R AN FE N IR E ¥ B =L 17 FE T
18, had any right to subscribe for the securities of the Company, or had MARBERRBEF 2R -

exercised any such right during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF

SIGNIFICANCE

(@ In June 2005, QPL Limited, the wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a Supply Agreement with ASAT Limited for
reducing delivery cycle time by maintaining minimum inventory
level agreed by the relevant parties. For finished goods produced
by QPL Limited pursuant to forecast provided by ASAT Limited but
remained undelivered for over 3 months, ASAT Limited is liable for
paying 66% of sale prices of these undelivered finished goods to
QPL Limited. As agreed with ASAT Limited, the revenue arising from
these undelivered goods is recognised when the condition meets.
During the year, no revenue was recognised under this agreement.

(b) In 1999, the Group entered into an agreement with ASAT group
under which ASAT group provides the Group with management
information services and in return, the Group pays a portion of
ASAT group's costs associated with its management information
system operation subject to an adjustment according to usage as
agreed between ASAT group and the Group. During the year, no
expense was recognised under this agreement.

As described in Note 15 to the consolidated financial statements, ASAT has
completed the sales of all shares of ASAT Limited, a wholly owned
subsidiary of ASAT, to an independent third party on 4th February, 2010
and ASAT Limited has no longer to be the subsidiary of ASAT group. On
11th February, 2010, the shareholders of ASAT passed resolution to place
ASAT into voluntary liquidation and appoint joint voluntary liquidators to
implement the liquidation. These two agreements would not constitute
any directors'interests afterward.

Save as aforementioned, no contract of significance to which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract of significance concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was entered into during the year or
subsisted at the end of the year.

No director was a party to a service contract with the Company or any of
its subsidiaries, which is not determinable by the employing company
within one year without the payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).

EERNEZEANZANE

@ R-ZZEZRFRNA - ARAZEEM
BRAAREERARBEEKRIMEKE
RARIGILFEEHE WEBGFE
FHMEZEETRKEMIGREHER
HEE HEZKXHMEARAAZ
BRAOmMEERAAEE ERXR=1
ABRDARNE 2 8K RERXB
ERARZOMEBERAAXNZSE
AN EEK M Z66%E B - 214K X B
ERARFAEZERANEHKMESE
ZWAEEBRHENTERESER - F
A I AR IR I 15 o AR WK AR o

b R—AANF AEBRZERXEE
I B EERXEERAKE
REEEEMALERS  mMAKEEL
EAEREKNEEARAEEREEMARSR
EEZEHIRA HAIZAEKRERK
XNEERAEEGEHRELHFHE - F
W WEBRIRI G EERMAS

BN A B SRR M ISP - K B R
—TE—ZF_ANAERA—ZBIE=F
HEE2EWBRARLERXEEERAAZ
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NEEBZHERRA - R=ZFE—FTF=-A+—
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EREE -ZMhhaErTeELEEWE
Egr g

R &S RERIKXFRAEAER AR
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EEAEES N 3 R N EE 0L
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EENERARAXEFEANBERARRE
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

At 30th April, 2010, other than the interests disclosed above in respect of a
director, the Company has not been notified of any other interest
representing 5% or more of the issued share capital of the Company and
recorded in the register of substantial shareholders maintained under
Section 336 of the SFO.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence.

The emoluments of the directors and senior management of the Company
are decided by the Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board,
having regard to their individual duties and responsibilities with the
Company, remuneration benchmark in the industry and prevailing market
conditions.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to
directors and eligible employees, details of the scheme is set out in Note 35
to the consolidated financial statements.

APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
directors, an annual confirmation of the independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the independent
non-executive directors are independent.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws or under the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

According to the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Board, the percentage of the Company’s
shares which are in the hands of the public exceeds 25% of the Company’s
total number of issued shares throughout the year ended 30th April, 2010.
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AUDITOR = #Em

A resolution will be submitted to the Annual General Meeting of the RAAFREFEFAES LiSREEANEEE
Company to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the  #f o B &= (R 7 & 5T B 1T A A 2 7 4Z B hh 2 0k
Company. E

On behalf of the Board REXEZFE

Li Tung Lok FE

Chairman Z= [ 4%

Hong Kong, 9th August, 2010 BE ZE-—ZFTFN\ANHA
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GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK

The Company is committed to building and maintaining high standards of
corporate governance practices. The Company adopted its own Code on
Corporate Governance Practices (the “QPL Code") incorporating the
principles and code provisions set out in the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). A copy of the QPL Code is posted on the
Company's website.

Throughout the year under review, the Company has applied the principles
and complied with all the code provisions set out in the CG Code except
for the deviations explained in the relevant paragraphs below.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The board of directors (the “Directors”) of the Company (the “Board”)
assumes responsibility for leadership and control of the Company and is
collectively responsible for promoting the success of the Company by
directing and supervising the Group's affairs. Responsibilities of the Board
include but are not limited to the formulation of the Group’s strategy and
policies, setting of corporate and management targets and key operational
initiatives, monitoring and control of operational and financial performance,
and approval of major capital expenditures, major investments, material
acquisitions and disposal of assets, corporate or financial restructuring and
significant operational financial and management matters.

The Board delegates the day-to-day management and operations of the
Group’s businesses to the executive management under the supervision of
the chief executive officer of the Company (“Chief Executive Officer”). The
division of responsibilities between the Board and the management is set
out in the QPL Code.

Three Board committees, namely, the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee, have also been established to
oversee particular aspects of the Group’s affairs. Details of these three
committees are set out below.

The Company has established a policy enabling Directors to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company’s expense. The Board will provide separate independent
professional advice to Directors to assist the relevant Director or Directors
to discharge his/their duties to the Company as and when requested or
necessary.
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The structure, size and composition of the Board are reviewed from time to
time to ensure that the Board has a balanced composition of skills and
experience appropriate for the requirements of the businesses of the
Group, and that the balance between executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors is sufficient to provide adequate checks for
safeguarding the interests of the shareholders of the Company and to
enable the Board to exercise independent judgment.

During the year under review and up to the date of this Annual Report, the
Board consists of two executive Directors, one of whom is the founder of
the Group, Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer, and three
non-executive Directors, all of whom are independent non-executive
Directors.

Executive Directors
Li Tung Lok (Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer)
Phen Hoi Ping Patrick (Senior Vice President of Sales and Marketing)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Robert Charles Nicholson

Sze Tsai To Robert

Wong Chun Bong Alex

The Directors have extensive industry knowledge and experience in
corporate management, strategic planning, and legal, accounting and
financial matters. Of the five existing Directors, two independent non-
executive Directors are qualified accountants. The biographies of the
existing Directors are set out on pages 16 to 17 of this Annual Report. The
information is also available on the Company’s website.

Throughout the year under review, the Board has complied with Rules
3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules in having at least three independent
non-executive directors with at least one independent non-executive
director possessing appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise.

The Company has received from each existing independent non-executive
Director an annual written confirmation of his independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all existing independent
non-executive Directors to be independent on the basis of the
independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

To the best knowledge of the Board, there is no financial, business or family
relationship among the members of the Board.
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Appointment, Retirement and Re-election of Directors

Code Provision A4.2 of the CG Code stipulates that every director, including
those appointed for a specific term, should be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years.

Under the Bye-laws of the Company, half of the Directors (excluding
Director(s) holding office as executive chairman and/or managing director,
who is/are, by virtue of Bermuda law, exempted from retirement by
rotation) shall retire from office at each annual general meeting of the
Company and shall be eligible for re-election. As the executive Chairman of
the Board, Mr. Li Tung Lok is not subject to retirement by rotation. In order
to comply with Code Provision A4.2, Mr. Li Tung Lok has agreed to
voluntarily retire and be re-elected at least once every three years. At the
annual general meeting of the Company held on 5th October, 2009, Mr. Li
voluntarily retired from office and was re-elected as executive Director. Mr.
Li continues to act as the Chairman of the Board.

The Company currently does not have a Director holding office as its
managing director.

Non-executive Directors

The non-executive Directors are appointed for a fixed term of not more
than three years, subject to retirement and re-election pursuant to the
Bye-laws of the Company.

Board Meetings

During the year under review, six Board meetings were held. The
attendance record of each member of the Board is set out below.

Members of the Board
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Attendance/
Number of Meetings

Exzamia

BHITEZE

Executive Directors
LiTung Lok (Chairman of the Board and

HERE, SEBE

TR EFSLTERTHAE)

Chief Executive Officer) 6/6
Phen Hoi Ping Patrick (Senior Vice President of Sales TRV (IHERESHSEREEEH)

and Marketing) 4/6
Independent Non-executive Directors BN TESE
Robert Charles Nicholson BB 5/6
Sze Tsai To Robert s EH 6/6
Wong Chun Bong Alex T iR F 6/6
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual.

Mr. Li Tung Lok has been the Chairman of the Board since the
establishment of the Company in January 1989. Mr. Li has also served as
the Chief Executive Officer since December 2008. Being the founder of the
Group, Mr. Li's industry expertise and detailed understanding of the
Company's operations is highly regarded by the Company. Accordingly,
vesting the roles of Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer in
Mr. Li adds significant value to the Company’s business growth while
enhancing the efficiency of decision-making process in response to the
changing environment. Given all major decisions are reserved to the Board
and a majority the Board members are independent non-executive
Directors, the Company considers that there is adequate balance of power
and authority in place between the Board and the management of the
Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established in April 2000 pursuant to the then
Code of Best Practice of the Listing Rules.

Throughout the year under review and up to the date of this Annual
Report, the Audit Committee consists of three independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Sze Tsai To Robert (being the Chairman of the Audit
Committee), Mr. Robert Charles Nicholson and Mr. Wong Chun Bong Alex.
Mr. Sze Tsai To Robert and Mr. Wong Chun Bong Alex are qualified
accountants with extensive experience in accounting, audit and financial
matters.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are consistent with those
set out in the CG Code. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee is
posted on the Company’s website and also available from the company
secretary of the Company (“Company Secretary”) on request.

The major roles and functions of the Audit Committee include:

- assisting the Board in fulfilling its responsibilities by providing an
independent review and supervision of the Group’s financial
reporting system, and effectiveness of the Group's internal control
system;

- reviewing the Group’s financial information; and

- reviewing the appointment of external auditors to ensure
continuing auditor independence.
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During the year under review, three Audit Committee meetings were held.
The attendance record of each member of the Audit Committee is set out
below.

Members of the Audit Committee

EREEEME

el
BERER

FER KETZRERZEGEH -
BE@ERBZHFEILHENOT

Attendance/
Number of Meetings

HERY ERBE

Independent Non-executive Directors BTN TEE

Sze Tsai To Robert (Chairman of the Audit Committee) S B EZLZESEE) 3/3
Robert Charles Nicholson Re B 3/3
Wong Chun Bong Alex T & 3/3

During the year under review, work performed by the Audit Committee
included:

- reviewing and approving external auditor's engagement letter in
relation to the audit of the financial statements for the year ended
30th April, 2009;

- reviewing external auditor’s audit plan in relation to the audit of
the financial statements for the year ended 30th April, 2009;

- reviewing and discussing with the external auditor significant audit,

accounting and internal control issues arising from the audit of the
financial statements for the year ended 30th April, 2009;

- reviewing the financial statements for the year ended 30th April,
2009 and making recommendations to the Board for approval;

- reviewing and approving external auditor’s engagement letter in
relation to the review of the interim financial statements for the six
months ended 31st October, 2009:;

- discussing with the external auditor accounting issues arising from
the review of the interim financial statements for the six months
ended 31st October, 2009;

- reviewing the interim financial statements for the six months
ended 31st October, 2009 and making recommendations to the

Board for approval;

- reviewing the scope of internal control review proposed by the
external firm of qualified accountants; and

- reviewing the report on the review of the system of internal control
of the Group.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 23rd January, 2006.
Since its establishment, the Remuneration Committee has consisted of one
executive Director, namely Mr. Li Tung Lok, and three independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. Robert Charles Nicholson (being the
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee), Mr. Sze Tsai To Robert and Mr.
Wong Chun Bong Alex.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are consistent with
those set out in the CG Code. The terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee are posted on the Company’s website and also available from
the Company Secretary on request.

The major roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee include:

- making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure for the remuneration of all Directors and senior
management;

- determining and approving the specific remuneration packages of
all executive Directors and senior management; and

- making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
non-executive Directors.

During the year under review, no meeting of the Remuneration Committee
was held. Written resolution procedure was adopted to deal with the
business of the Remuneration Committee.

During the year under review, work performed by the Remuneration
Committee included:

- reviewing and fixing the remuneration of executive Directors and
senior management;

- considering and approving the grant of options to an executive
Director and senior management;

- making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of the
independent non-executive Directors; and

- making recommendations to the Board on the grant of options to
the independent non-executive Directors.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE REZEES

The Nomination Committee was established on 23rd January, 2006. Since REZEENZEX E RZ+=HmM -
its establishment, the Nomination Committee has consisted of three ERNYUAR  REZEESRE=ZZ2BZIFEH
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Wong Chun Bong Alex TEE TR EE (T;E HEECER) R
(being the Chairman of the Nomination Committee), Mr. Robert Charles SEREEEREBELE-

Nicholson and Mr. Sze Tsai To Robert.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are consistent with REAZES RESEECEE AT
those set out in the CG Code. The terms of reference of the Nomination E-Ho-REZZESCRESEEBENHEANED
Committee are posted on the Company's website and also available from A MR ERAATWESERH -

the Company Secretary on request.

The major roles and functions of the Nomination Committee are: RELTESZFTEAE N

- identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board members ~ — if% @ BEABERKABESEZKEZA
and selecting or making recommendations to the Board on the g jz MEEgHEBLMTE FB
candidates nominated for directorships; ﬂ‘% Z /\ e

- assessing the independence of independent non-executive — HEBYIFERTEST 2B LM &

Directors; and

- making recommendations to the Board on relevant matters - MEFSHBZINBEEESERES
relating to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and (LERESFE IR RITHBAER)ET
succession planning for Directors, in particular, the Chairman of the TElcE@ER-

Board and the Chief Executive Officer.

During the year under review, one Nomination Committee meeting was ROBEFE BRIT-AREEZESE u%%
held to review the annual confirmation of independence submitted by the LA 38 B ¥& 37 3F ﬁﬂ TESEBH UM ZFERERD
independent non-executive Directors and assess their independence. The LG EREzZB LG REEECH EJZ =1
attendance record of each member of the Nomination Committee is set ZHEREEENT

out below:

Attendance/
Members of the Nomination Committee Number of Meetings
REZESRE HERE ERHA
Independent Non-executive Directors BUIENTEE
Wong Chun Bong Alex T &
(Chairman of the Nomination Committee) (lEEZE &+ )E) 1/1
Robert Charles Nicholson BB 1/1
Sze Tsai To Robert s EE 1
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Board has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules for dealings in the securities of the Company by Directors.
All Directors have confirmed, following specific enquiry by the Company,
that they have fully complied with the required standard set out in the
Model Code and its code of conduct regarding directors' transactions
throughout the year under review.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Directors acknowledge that it is their responsibility for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements which give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Group at the end of the year under review and of
results of operation and cash flows of the Group for the year under review.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements for the year under
review, the Directors have:

- selected suitable accounting policies and applied them on a
consistent basis;

- made judgments and estimates that are prudent, fair and
reasonable; and

- prepared the consolidated financial statements on going concern
basis and are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the Company’s external auditor, Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu, regarding their reporting responsibility is set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on page 39 of this Annual Report.

HAEXEZBRETA
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu was reappointed as the Company’s external
auditor at the annual general meeting of the Company held on 5th
October, 2009 until the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of
the Company. During the year under review, a remuneration of
approximately HK$1.28 million was paid and payable to Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu for the provision of audit services, and approximately HK$0.4
million was paid and payable to Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu for the provision
of non-audit related services (including review of interim report and tax
services) to the Group.

INTERNAL CONTROL

Code Provision C. 2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the Directors should at
least annually conduct a review of the effectiveness of the system of
internal control of the Group.

The Board recognizes that it has the overall responsibility to establish and
maintain a sound and effective internal control system to ensure the
smooth running of operations, safeguard the Group’s assets and
shareholders interest as well as ensure the reliability of financial statements
in compliance with applicable laws and regulations. In devising internal
controls, the Group has regard to the nature and extent of the risk, the
likelihood of it crystallizing, and the cost of controls. A system of internal
control is designed to manage, but not eliminate, the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives and can only provide reasonable but not
absolute, assurance against the risk of material misstatement, fraud or loss.

During the year under review, the Group engaged an external firm of
qualified accountants to initiate an independent review covering the
overall financial, operational, compliance, risk management and monitoring
control aspects for a substantial part of the Group's operations. A report
from the external firm of qualified accountants was addressed and
presented to the Board, and reviewed by the Audit Committee and the
Board. The report did not reveal any significant defects.

The aforesaid is an ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and
managing of significant business, financial, compliance and operational
risks specific to the Group. Relevant recommendations made by the Audit
Committee and the external qualified accountants who performed the
reviews at least annually would be implemented, if appropriate, as soon as
possible, by the Group to further enhance its internal control policies,
procedures and practices.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
VR Y Gk

Deloitte.
=2

TO THE MEMBERS OF QPL INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of QPL International
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) set out on pages 41 to 106, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 30th April, 2010, and the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the
true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility
includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal control
relevant to the preparation and the true and fair presentation of the
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable
in the circumstances.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. We conducted
our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

3 QPL INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(RERZEFMALZHRA A
Iz B 3R

RATE B EH N FE41 2106 B AQPL International
Holdings Limited ([E 2 &) R E W B 2 5 (518
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XRBEZRALFEMNGFEEZERARSE
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T ECRBEE A H b 75 88 I 5 -
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 30th April, 2010 and of the
Group's profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

9th August, 2010
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
\\/T\ = %ﬁ”&)\#&%

For the Year Ended 30th April, 2010 BE —Z—ZFMA=+HILF /&

Turnover = 275
Other income H A 9 22
Exchange loss, net R EEFE (3)
Changes in inventories of finished B mEERENRZ
goods and work in progress FEEH (4)
Raw materials and consumables used  { Bl & #1 &} &2 SE #E & (135)
Staff costs B B LA (76)
Depreciation of property, plant and Y HMERRBITE
equipment 14 @
Impairment loss on property, plant ME HMEREREZ
and equipment RN ! (50)
Losses arising from changes in fair MEEMITERAFE
value of derivative financial BHHEL BB
instruments (12)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—XWBAR 2
I 2= 4
Other expenses HaF X (85)
Interest on bank and other loans BARAFANEHEEZ
wholly repayable within five years RITREMERZFE m
Share of loss of an associate Db EEE QR EE ©
Profit (loss) before taxation B B A1 (&5 18) (95)
Taxation IE 10 M
Profit (loss) for the year NE s (B E) 11 (96)
Other comprehensive income EmzmlAFHZ):
(expenses):
Losses on fair value changes of AHEEREANTE
available-for-sale investments BERELECZER (14)
Total comprehensive income AEE2ERAFESR)
(expenses) for the year fae (110)

HK$

BT B

Earning (loss) per share FBRREF(EE) 12
Basic and diluted EXRk#EE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
wra MO SRR

At30th April, 2010 R = ZE—Z & A =+H

2009 1st May, 2008

—TEEZNF

HKS'M

Hi &t ; BEET
(RESEIE)) (Restated)
(&E7) (&)

Non-current assets ERBEE

Property, plant and equipment W s s 14 53 122

Interest in an associate Bt N R m 15 - -

Investment in convertible preferred A # i% 18 % I 1R &

shares — loan portion —ERHD 16 - -

Derivative financial instruments MTESMITA 16 1 13

Other receivable H 4th pE U $h 18 17 5 -
59 135

Current assets REBEE

Inventories FE 18 27 38

Trade and other receivables B 5 & E i fEI I8 19 34 57

Trade receivable due from EUEERNRZES

an associate 1A 20 13 27

Deposits and prepayments e RBENFKE 6

Available-for-sale investments AHEERE 21 18

Bank balances and cash RITEHR LR 22 13 22
97 168

Current liabilities REBAE

Trade and other payables B 5 & B 3R 23 1 38

Trust receipt loans and bill payables 15 5T Y & & 3 & 24 10

BT R E

Deposits and accrued expenses e MEGTER 35 45

Taxation payable JE @ IE - -

Borrowings BE 25 24 23

Obligation under a finance lease Rl & 8 49 & & 26 - -
75 116

Net current assets RBEEZFRE 22 52
81 187
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

fre IOk

At30th April, 2010 R = ZE—Z4mM A =+H

K it

2009

—ERNF
HKS'M
BEET
(RESEIE))
(&E7)

HK$'M

BEEABTT

1st May, 2008
—ETT)\F
"AHA—H
HKS'M
BEETT
(GEYEIE))
(FE35)

Capital and reserves EXRRHE
Share capital [N 27 61 el
Share premium and reserves % 10 i B R & 12 122

Equity attributabletoowners AR T HEE AELEDR

of the Company 73 183

Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Accrued expenses B EA 4 4
Borrowings BE 25 4 -
8 4
81 187

ERE4NZ106AZEAMBHREALESTEN
—E-EF\ANAMELRETE XA
TIEERREEGEE:

The consolidated financial statements on pages 41 to 106 were approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 9th August, 2010 and
are signed on its behalf by:

Li Tung Lok Phen Hoi Ping Patrick
= [E % % ¥
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
BEF EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
I\‘/j_\ 4:_"_ /\ /\ Py @J %

For the Year Ended 30th April, 2010 8 E —T—ZFN A=+ HILFE

Capital  Investment Share
Share Share Contributed redemption revaluation options Accumulated
capital premium surplus reserve reserve reserve losses
RE
BEx  ROEE BHBEHR EEG EfifiE BRERE RHTBR

HKS'M HKS'M S HKS'M HKS'M
T HEBT BT HEBATL ;

(Note)

At 1st May, 2008 RZZENEF
ZA—-H 61 148 40 12 16 4 (98) 183

Othercomprehensive ~ FREM2E
expenses for the year X - - - - (14) - - (14)
Loss for the year FNEE - - - - - - (%) (%)

Total comprehensive FRNEEME

expenses for the year Fek] - - - - (14) - (96) (110)
Transfer to retained BREERE
profits iRl - - - - - (M 1 -
At 30th April, 2009 RZZEZNEF
MA=+H 61 148 40 12 2 3 (193) 73
Profit for the year FREM - - - - - - 23 23

Recognition of equity- R IR A4 &
settled share-based MR AR

payment AT - - - - - 3 _ 3
Transfer to retained BEZREEA
profits - - - - - 0] 1 -
At 30th Apri, 2010 R-_Z2-ZFF
MA=+8 61 148 40 12 2 5 (169) 99

Note:  Contributed surplus represents the excess of the net assets of subsidiaries Met: EHRBRHBEMKENBLARNAEFERBRS
acquired over the nominal value of the Company's shares issued as RKARIERBHAREMBITROEEZZE

consideration. o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
,\\/T\/\Iﬁiﬁiﬂi

For the Year Ended 30th April, 2010 BE —Z—ZFMA=+HILF /&

NOTE
ok:a

OPERATING ACTIVITIES REXK
Profit (loss) before taxation Br B4 B i A (&5 18) (95)
Adjustments for: P
Interest on bank and other loans HARAFAZHEEZ
wholly repayable within five years WITRAMERZ
A 1
Share of loss of an associate DL N R ET 1B 9
Depreciation of property, plant and WE HBEREREZ
equipment = 2]
Impairment loss on property, plant M HMEREREZ
and equipment VRN ! 50
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—ZRXMBARZ
W & @)
Shares-based payment expense AR B A 2
NRHAX -
Reversal of allowance for bad and RIZBRBEERR
doubtful debts )
Losses arising from changes in fair EEMITEAERTE
value of derivative financial BHEL 2 EIE
instruments 12
Imputed interest income on IETE) R B H A E UL
non-current interest-free other REZHEERN B WA
receivable (1
Interest income for convertible AR E LR 2
preferred shares 2 WA ©)
Operating cash inflows (outflows) RETEEESEHAT 2
before movements in working LERSRACED)
capital (18)
(Increase) decrease in inventories 78 m) R 4 8
(Increase) decrease in trade and other B 5 K E i & Y K IB
receivables (3% hn) ik > 24
Decrease in trade receivable due from JEU B & N B 2 B 5 3 1E
an associate Vo 13
Increase in deposits and prepayments 32 4 K F8 < 7 I8 12 1 )
Increase (decrease) in trade and other & 5 K E b JE {5+ ZL 1B
payables o Crt 2) (20)
Decrease in bill payables RN 3
Decrease in deposits and accrued e RETTERRD

expenses

Cash generated from (used in)
operations

Income tax paid

Interest paid

NET CASH FROM (USED IN)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

remz(ERE

ENMEHR
ENFE

RS RGP E)
REFHE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mEBRSRER

For the Year Ended 30th April, 2010 BZE —E—ZFWA=+HILFE

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property, plant and
equipment

Net cash inflow from disposal of
a subsidiary

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING
ACTIVITIES

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

New bank loans raised

Repayment of borrowings

Net increase (decrease) in trust
receipt loans

NET CASH (USED IN) FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

AT END OF YEAR
Representing bank balances and cash
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o

For the Year Ended 30th April, 2010 HE =%

BB HRRNH

—ZENA=THIEFE

GENERAL

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The
addresses of the registered office and principal place of business of
the Company are disclosed in the corporate information section of
the annual report.

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars ("HKS")
that is different from the functional currency of the Company
which is United States dollars ("USD") as the directors of the
Company control and monitor the performance and financial
position of the Company by using HKS. During the year ended 30th
April, 2010, the directors reassessed the Company’s functional
currency and considered that the functional currency of the
Company should be changed from HK$ to USD starting from 1st
May, 2009 as USD has become the currency that mainly influences
the operation of the Group's significant entities.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) are the manufacture and sale of integrated circuit
leadframes, heatsinks and stiffeners and investment holding.

—REH
ARARRBRETMALAERRLE
RELRA EBROREEBARS
PRERAR(TBERPT]) EH - AR A
MERE R T ELEEMA 2 MUt NF
BEBMEN —HRE-

HRARREZENBETEIRERER

NRAZRBEFHEARR - BBERKRTS
KABET(ETD2S BRRBHEE

BERT(EZETNDTR -BE-FT—FF
MA=t+tHBLEE EFEHARA
DEEER IRSENRETERSE
BYEAGETIZEREHTLEEZE
B BMARANEEERB _FTTAN
FAA-BAMBRBTHRRET

ARARBREERBEAR - ARARHE
MBAR(MBARIAEED 2T EXE
BREERBEEEKERESIGIE &
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NN b IS

For the Year Ended 30th April, 2010 BiZE = —ZFMNA=+HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

48

(“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new and
revised Standards, Amendments and Interpretations (‘new and
revised HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the "HKICPA").

HKAS 1 (Revised 2007)

HKAS 23 (Revised 2007)

HKAS 32 & 1T (Amendments)

HKFRS 1 & HKAS 27
(Amendments)

HKFRS 2 (Amendment)

HKFRS 7 (Amendment)

HKFRS 8

HK (IFRIC)-Int 9 & HKAS 39

(Amendments)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 13

K (IFRIC)-Int 1

HK (IFRIC)-Int 16

HK(IFRIC)-Int 18

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKFRSs (Amendments)

Presentation of Financial
Statements
Borrowing Costs

Puttable Financial Instruments and
Obligations Arising on
Liquidation

Cost of an Investment in
a Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled
Entity or Associate

Vesting Conditions and
Cancellations

Improving Disclosures about
Financial Instruments

Operating Segments

Embedded Derivatives

Customer Loyalty Programmes

Agreements for the Construction
of Real Estate

Hedges of a Net Investment in
a Foreign Operation

Transfers of Assets from Customers

Improvements to HKFRSs issued
in 2008, except for the
amendment to HKFRS 5 that
is effective for annual periods
beginning or after 1st July, 2009

Improvements to HKFRSs issued
in 2009 in relation to the
amendment to paragraph 80
of HKAS 39

2.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

W

For the Year Ended 30th April, 2010 & =&

ire MR

—ZEMA=TRLEFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

Except as described below, the adoption of the new and revised
HKFRSs has had no material effect on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the current or prior accounting
periods.

HKAS 1 (Revised 2007) Presentation of Financial Statements

HKAS 1 (Revised 2007) has introduced terminology changes
(including revised titles for the consolidated financial statements)
and changes in the format and content of the consolidated
financial statements.

In addition, the adoption of HKAS 1 (Revised 2007) has resulted in
the presentation of a third consolidated statement of financial
position as at Tst May, 2008 as the Group has reclassified items in
its financial statements during the current financial year (see
below).

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements

As part of Improvements to HKFRSs (2008), HKAS 1 Presentation of
Financial Statements has been amended to clarify whether
derivatives that are classified as held for trading in accordance with
HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
should be presented as current or non-current. The amendment
requires derivatives that are held primarily for trading purposes to
be presented as current regardless of their maturity dates. In
addition, the amendment requires derivatives that are not held for
trading purposes to be classified as current or non-current on the
basis of their settlement date. Prior to the amendment, the Group
presented, as current, all derivatives that are classified as held for
trading in accordance with HKAS 39. The amendment has had no
impact on the Group’s results for the reported periods. The
amendment has resulted in derivative financial instruments with
carrying amounts of HK$13 million and HKS$1 million as at 1st May,
2008 and 30th April, 2009 being reclassified from current to non-
current.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2.
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs"”) (continued)

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments

HKFRS 8 is a disclosure standard that requires the identification of
operating segments to be prepared on the same basis as financial
information that is reported internally for the purpose of allocating
resources between segments and assessing their performance. The
predecessor standard, HKAS 14 Segment Reporting, required the
identification of two sets of segments (business and geographical)
using a risks and returns approach. In the past, the Group’s primary
reporting format was geographical segments by location of
customers. The directors considered that there was only one
business segment, being manufacture and sale of integrated circuit
leadframes.

The application of HKFRS 8 has not resulted in a redesignation of
the Group's operating segments as compared with the primary
segments determined in accordance with HKAS 14. Nor has the
adoption of HKFRS 8 changed the basis of measurement of
segment revenue, segment profit or loss and segment assets,
except that the Group's liabilities have not been reported
segmentally (see Note 8).

Improving disclosures about Financial Instruments
(Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures)

The amendments to HKFRS 7 expand the disclosures required in
relation to fair value measurements in respect of financial
instruments which are measured at fair value. The Group has not
provided comparative information for the expanded disclosures in
accordance with the transitional provisions set out in the
amendments.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2.
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

HKAS 23 (Revised 2007) Borrowing Costs

In previous years, the Group expensed all borrowing costs that
were directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of a qualifying asset when they were incurred. HKAS 23
(Revised 2007) removes the option previously available to expense
all borrowing costs when incurred. The adoption of HKAS 23
(Revised 2007) has resulted in the Group changing its accounting
policy to capitalise all such borrowing costs as part of the cost of
the qualifying asset. The Group has applied the revised accounting
policy to borrowing costs relating to qualifying assets for which the
commencement date for capitalisation is on or after 1st May, 2009
in accordance with the transitional provisions in HKAS 23 (Revised
2007). As the revised accounting policy has been applied
prospectively from 1st May, 2009, this change in accounting policy
has not resulted in restatement of amounts reported in respect of
prior accounting periods. The revised standard has had no impact
on the Group’s results for the reported periods.

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
Standards, Amendments or Interpretations that have been issued

but are not yet effective.

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKFRSs (Amendments)
HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKAS 24 (Revised)
HKAS 27 (Revised)

HKAS 32 (Amendment)
HKAS 39 (Amendment)
HKFRS 1 (Amendment)

HKFRS T (Amendment)

HKFRS 2 (Amendment)
HKFRS 3 (Revised)

HKFRS 9

HK (IFRIC)-Int 14 (Amendment)

HK (IFRIC)-Int 17

HK (IFRIC)-Int 19

Amendments to HKFRS 5 as part of
Improvements to HKFRSs 2008’

Improvements to HKFRSs 2009”
Improvements to HKFRSs 2010

Related Party Disclosures’

Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements'

Classification of Rights Issues’

Eligible Hedged Items'

Additional Exemptions for First-time
Adopters®

Limited Exemption from Comparative
HKFRS 7 Disclosures for First-time
Adopters®

Group Cash-settled Share-based
Payment Transactions’

Business Combinations'

Financial Instruments®
Prepayments of a Minimum Funding
Requirement’

Distributions of Non-cash Assets to
Owners'

Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with
Equity Instruments®
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2.
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs"”) (continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July, 2009

Amendments that are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1st July, 2009 and 1st January, 2010, as appropriate

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July, 2010
and Tst January, 2011, as appropriate

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2010

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st February,
2010

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July, 2010
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2011
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2013

The adoption of HKFRS 3 (Revised) may affect the Group's business
combination for which the acquisition date is on or after 1st May,
2010. HKAS 27 (Revised) will affect the accounting treatment for
changes in a Group's ownership interest in a subsidiary.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets and will be
effective from 1st May, 2013, with earlier application permitted. The
Standard requires all recognised financial assets that are within the
scope of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement to be measured at either amortised cost or fair value.
Specifically, debt investments that (i) are held within a business
model whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows and
(i) have contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal outstanding are generally measured
at amortised cost. All other debt investments and equity
investments are measured at fair value. The application of HKFRS 9
might affect the classification and measurement of Group's
financial assets.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of the
other new and revised Standards, Amendments or Interpretations
will have no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE SR MR
For the Year Ended 30th April, 2010 EE =T —ZFWNA=+HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments, which
are measured at fair values, as explained in the accounting policies
set out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements included applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities (including special purpose
entities) controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is
achieved where the Company has the power to govern the
financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits
from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year
are included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective
date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with
those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are
eliminated on consolidation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

An associate is an entity over which the investor has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a joint
venture. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not
control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of an associate are incorporated
in these consolidated financial statements using the equity method
of accounting. Under the equity method, interest in an associate is
carried in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost as
adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of net
assets of the associate, less any identified impairment loss. When
the Group's share of losses of an associate equals or exceeds its
interest in that associate (which includes any long-term interests
that, in substance, form part of the Group's net investment in the
associate), the Group discontinues recognising its share of further
losses. An additional share of losses is provided for and a liability is
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of that
associate.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group,
profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of the Group's
interest in the relevant associate.

The Group shall discontinue the use of equity method from the
date that it ceases to have significant influence over an associate
and account for the investment in accordance with HKAS 39 from
that date, provided the associate does not become a subsidiary or
joint venture as defined in HKAS 31.

The carrying amount of the investment at date of that it ceases to
be an associate shall be regarded as its cost on initial measurement
as a financial asset (see accounting policy on available-for-sale
financial assets below).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE SR MR
For the Year Ended 30th April, 2010 EE =T —ZFWNA=+HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their
expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets or, where
shorter, the term of the relevant lease.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is
included in profit or loss in the period in which the item is
derecognised.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its assets to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated
in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. If
the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an
expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately.

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out method.

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value except for available-for-sale investment initially measured at
deemed cost, which is the carrying amount of the associate at the
time when the Group ceases to have significant influence over the
associate and the associate does not become a subsidiary or joint
venture under HKAS 31. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition orissue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into one of the three
categories, including financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVTPL"), loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial
assets. All reqular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments.

3.

TEEHRE®
CRHAERSMBENEREERRE

KAELTEAGNKRIXZIHNARERA
FHERAREANER - SREERS
MEBEBEVLSEAFEE WA
%&ﬁ@iﬁ&ﬁﬁ&$ﬁ§*%$
EERTHBYEYBEARKAE
ﬁﬁ%%@ﬂl IREEASS fﬁﬁ
FINHEAAME QR KA LD ¥R
BRARIZEEE WEXBTEME
EREGBEBERATESAEBREZZS
BMEERCHABBERINZCEEREMGLR
SGHRATITRNTERBINASRHEE
LEBMEBEZAFEXECHEEX
CREBEZAFERNKGERTERM
E) o WBEAFEMABEZE®ME
EdtBABEZEERLER KA
BiEsmer e

EHEE

AEEZSRMEEDR=ZFB RAYF
Bt ARS((RAFEHARBRDZS
ﬂé? B R R WK IE A N AT A g

ESREE-FTAUERIXNEE K
ﬁEZ$@§FEf§%H%$ﬁ%
Nt E TR BRAABENNE
Eb&ﬁm%thﬁlifmfmz
KEEENNEEECSREEES -

o

BB EX

ERNBERFESREEHHAN
ERBEBHREASEMNBRAZITE-
ERNEAREREERAFHAR
REBE(MER ARV ERZ K
mEEERMRETRARAMEIRE

(BRBRERNXERBOZMER
NREWBMER KHKANRKEAM
IR 2 &K o

BEHETAZWARERMNKMER -
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The Group's financial assets at FVTPL are embedded derivatives
separated from the host contract and other derivative financial
instruments.

Derivatives embedded in financial instruments or other host
contracts are treated as separate derivatives when their risks and
characteristics are not closely related to those of the host contracts,
and the host contracts are not measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are deemed as
financial assets held for trading or financial liabilities held for
trading. Changes in fair values of such derivatives are recognised
directly in profit or loss.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
other receivable, investment in convertible preferred shares — loan
portion, trade and other receivables, trade receivable due from an
associate, bank balances and cash) are carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less any identified impairment
losses (see accounting policy in respect of impairment loss on
financial assets below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated or not classified as financial assets at FVTPL, loans and
receivables or held-to-maturity investments.

Available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value at the
end of the reporting period. Changes in fair value are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in investment
revaluation reserve, until the financial asset is disposed of or is
determined to be impaired, at which time, the cumulative gain or
loss previously accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve is
reclassified to profit or loss (see accounting policy on impairment
loss on financial assets below).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of the reporting period.
Financial assets are impaired where there is objective evidence
that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows
of the financial assets have been affected.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment below its
cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or

default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment loss is
recognised in profit or loss when there is objective evidence that
the asset is impaired, and is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception
of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through
the use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount
of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When a
trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that
the carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have
been had the impairment not been recognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments will not
be reversed through profit or loss in subsequent periods. Any
increase in fair value subsequent to impairment loss is recognised
directly in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
investment revaluation reserve.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.
The Group's financial liabilities are generally classified into other
financial liabilities.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables, trust receipt
loans and bill payables, and borrowings are subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue cost.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (continued)

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial assets. On derecognition of a financial
asset, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified
in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share option granted to employees

The fair value of services received determined by reference to the
fair value of share options granted at the grant date is expensed on
a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with a corresponding
increase in equity (share options reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its estimates
of the number of options that are expected to ultimately vest. The
impact of the revision of the original estimates during the vesting
period, if any, is recognised in profit or loss, with a corresponding
adjustment to share options reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When the share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
retained profits (accumulated losses).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of the
Group at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if lower, at
the present value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the consolidated
statement of financial position as a finance lease obligation. Lease
payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction
of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of interest
on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are
charged directly to profit or loss (see below).

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the term of relevant lease. Benefits received
and receivable as an incentive to enter into an operating lease are
recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the lease term on
a straight-line basis.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold in
the normal course of business, net of discounts and sales related
taxes.

Sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered and title
has passed with reference to the sales contracts/shipping terms.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimate
future cash receipts throughout the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholders'rights to receive payment have been established.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional currency
of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective
functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates) at the rates of
exchanges prevailing on the dates of transaction. At the end of
each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on that date. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical costin a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the translation of monetary items, are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise. Exchange differences
arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair
value are included in profit or loss for the period.

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign operations are
translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong
Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of the
reporting period, and their income and expenses are translated at
the average exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case, the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions are used.
Exchange differences, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity (the translation reserve).

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans, state-
managed retirement benefit schemes and the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme are charged as an expense when
employees have rendered services entitling them to the
contributions.

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income because it excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognised for all deductible temporary difference to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and an
associate, except where the Group is able to control the reversal of
the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled
or asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner
in which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates to
items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale for which the commencement date for
capitalisation is on or after 1st May, 2009, are added to the cost of
those assets until such time as the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are
described in Note 3, the directors of the Company are required to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future period.

The following are key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end
of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year.

Determining whether property, plant and equipment are impaired
requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating
units to which property, plant and equipment have been allocated.
The value in use calculation requires the Group to estimate the
future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit
and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
If the actual future cash flows are more or less than expected, a
reversal or further impairment loss on property, plant and
equipment will arise. At 30th April, 2010, the carrying amount of
property, plant and equipment is HKS51 million (2009: HK$53
million). Details of the recoverable amount calculation are disclosed
in Note 14.
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5.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(continued)

As described in Note 16, the directors of the Company use their
judgement in selecting an appropriate valuation technique for
financial instruments not quoted in an active market. Valuation
techniques commonly used by market practitioners are applied.
For derivative financial instruments, assumptions are made based
on quoted market rates adjusted for specific features of the
instrument. Details of the assumptions used are disclosed in Note
16.

The other receivable due from a former subsidiary (Note 17) is
subject to review for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. The carrying amount of other receivable is reviewed
periodically with reference to availability of objective evidences
and indicators including any significant financial difficulties of the
former subsidiary in order to assess whether the recoverable
amount has declined below the carrying amount. If circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of other receivable may not be
recoverable, an impairment loss may be recognised in that period
and is measured as the difference between the carrying amount
and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the original effective interest rate.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to equity holders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which
includes the borrowings described in Note 25, net of cash and cash
equivalents, and equity attributable to equity holders of the
Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves and
accumulated losses.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a
regular basis. As a part of this review, the directors consider the cost
of capital and the risks associated with the issued share capital. The
Group will balance its overall capital structure through the payment
of dividends as well as obtaining finance from banks, if necessary.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Categories of financial instruments

Financial assets SWMEE

Loans and receivables ERkERGIE (B
(including cash and cash ReRkERREER)
equivalents)

Available-for-sale financial assets AHIEESRERE

Derivative financial instruments PTESBITA

Financial liabilities EA =N

Amortised costs HSERK AR

Financial risk management objectives and policies
The Group’s major financial instruments include available-for-sale
investments, investment in convertible preferred shares, other
receivable, trade and other receivables, derivative financial
instruments, bank balances and cash, trade and other payables,
trust receipt loans and bill payables, accrued expenses, borrowings
and obligation under a finance lease. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated
with these financial instruments and the policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. The management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner. There has been no
significant change to the Group's exposure to market risks or the
manner in which it manages and measures the risk.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. SRIAWm
Financial risk management objectives and policies BEEBEEEERBEE)
(continued)
Market risk w5 R B
(i) Currency risk () B

The Group operates mainly in Hong Kong and its monetary
assets, liabilities and transactions are principally
denominated in the functional currencies of respective
group entities, which are mainly HKS or USD. However, the
Group has purchases, expenses and borrowings
transactions which are denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”).
The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the management closely
monitors foreign exchange exposure to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s major foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and liabilities at the
reporting date are as follows:

AEBXTENBBRE EEHR
BE BERXZETENRBE
EERZMEEEABITRE
TRI)GHE -AM AEEEA
RETARBDAEZERE
XEEERS - AKBERELE
AIANEHHBE - R EHE
BB HINE R - DARELR
AE BV I B RO SR BUE B 15 1 -

AEBY BN EERE
EROEAKRE AN EEE
T :

Assets Liabilities

BE a&
2010 2010 2009

—g-%% —g-BF —TINF

HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BEBRT ; BEERL ABAET

RMB AR

Currency sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group's major sensitivity
analysis of a 5% increase and decrease in HK$ or USD
against RMB. 5% represents management’s assessment of
the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates.
The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their
translation at the year end for a 5% change in foreign
currency rates. A positive number below indicates an
increase in profit (2009: a decrease in loss) where the HKS
or USD strengthen 5% against the relevant currency. For a
59% weakening of the HKS or USD against the relevant
currency, there would be an equal and opposite impact on
the profit/loss, and the amounts below would be negative.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Market risk (continued)

Currency risk (continued)

(i)

(i)

6.

BT AW
iR EE R & RBUR(E)

%5 m kg (&)
) EBEEEE(E)

Profit/loss for the year FEmHEiE
RMB AR

A 5% increase and decrease in HKS or USD against RMB do
not have a material impact on the other equity of the
Group.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to investment in convertible preferred shares and
obligation under a finance lease. The management will
consider hedging significant fair value interest rate risk
should the need arise.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to the fluctuation of the prevailing market interest
rate on interest-bearing financial assets and financial
liabilities. Interest-bearing financial assets are mainly
balance with banks which are short term in nature. Interest-
bearing financial liabilities are mainly trust receipt loans
and bank loans which carry interests at Hong Kong prime
rate, plus a margin. It is the Group’s policy to keep its
borrowings at floating rate of interests so as to minimise
the fair value interest rate risk.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based
on the exposure to variable interest rate for non-derivative
instruments at the end of the reporting period. For variable-
rate interest bearing financial assets and borrowings, the
analysis is prepared assuming the amount of asset and
liability outstanding at the end of the reporting period was
outstanding for the whole year. A 10 or 100 basis point
represents management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rate in interest bearing financial
assets and liabilities respectively.

The aforesaid increase and decrease of interest rates do not
have a material impact on the profit or loss for both years
and other equity of the Group.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Market risk (continued)

(iii)

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk in relation to its
available-for-sale investments and derivative financial
instruments which are measured at fair value at the end of
the reporting period. The management manages this
exposure by reviewing these investments regularly.

Equity price sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
assuming that the change in prices had occurred at the end
of the reporting period and had been applied to the
exposure to price risk for the Group's available-for-sale
investments and derivative financial instruments at that date.
As described in Note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements, the shareholders of ASAT passed resolutions to
place ASAT into voluntary liquidation and appoint joint
voluntary liquidators to implement the liquidation on 11th
February, 2010. As at 30th April, 2010, in the opinion of the
directors of the Company, the fair value of the derivative
financial instruments were approximately zero due to the
liquidation of ASAT and such instruments were not included
in the following sensitivity analysis as at 30th April, 2010

A 10% change in equity prices represent the management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible changes in prices.

If the prices of the respective instruments had been 10%
higher/lower and all other variables were held constant:

investment revaluation reserve would increase/
decrease by HK$0.5 million (2009: increase/
decrease by HK$0.4 million) as a result of the
changes in fair value of available-for-sale
investments; and

loss for the year ended 30th April, 2009 decrease/
increase by HK$0.6 million as a result of the
changes in fair value of derivative financial
instruments.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis are
unrepresentative of the inherent market risk as the pricing
model used in the fair value valuation of the derivative
financial instruments involves multiple variables and certain
variables are interdependent. Besides, the year end
exposure does not reflect the exposure during the year.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Credit risk

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of the
counterparties failure to perform their obligations as at 30th April,
2010 and 2009 in relation to each class of recognised financial
assets is the carrying value of those assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to other receivable
and trade and other receivables as set out in Notes 17 and 19
respectively. The amounts of trade receivables presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position are net of allowances
for doubtful receivables. In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group is responsible for determination of
credit limits and credit approvals and other monitoring procedures
are carried out to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual trade and other debt at the end of the
reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment losses are
made for irrecoverable amounts.

The board of directors has delegated the management to be
responsible for assessment of financial position of individual debtor
and for determination of monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow up action is taken to recover overdue debts. The
management will remind debtors of the amount of outstanding
receivables and the dates of settlement to advise them to settle
receivables promptly.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties
are banks with high credit-ratings.

However, the Group is exposed to concentration of credit risk on its
trade receivables. As at 30th April, 2010, 18% (2009: 30%) of trade
receivables is due from the Group's largest customer and 28%
(2009: 22%) of trade receivables is due from the other four largest
customers of the Group. The Group is also exposed to
concentration of credit risk on its receivable from the former
subsidiary of HK$6 million (2009: HK$5 million), as described in
Note 17.

6.

€@ I A
EEEE

WXBH AR _E—ZEFR_FTZTA
FHNA=ZTHAEBITHRSE ZEE.
AIASEBERSECERSRE E AKX
RZRAEERRABE REA MK
MMERINEZEERMTE -

AEBZEERBREIZRE DA EH T
A FE17 B9z E b 8 W R IR A K B
Z N H At & W FRIE © R & B IS KON B
RENZ2EZRBFRETI MG REE
WRBEREERZzE REEERR
BRERE AEEEEEBAEHRE
ERB ETEEEHEEREME
EENE ABARRRREE KD S
HARNZER W AEERE®RSE
FHZEERNEEEBNE S REM
BIEZ AR E g 58 A BRI
CeBmELERBERRSE-

EXeRREEEBRANGEANER
AZEBBRA - R EEERF - AHE
RERWEAMERRNRETH -
EEESREGMHAMKEERREKR
HeBRBERY ZEREERE
B OR -

MRRSGE T REEREETRZE
T HRBESZEERRAR-

KM AEBEREESREREKFER
HEdrzERR R _Z—ZF 1WA
—t+H BES5BUFKEZI%(ZEE
NE30%) BERAEBESERETEF 2
I MR (ZZEZNF  22%) 8 A&
WAEBSIIEERARFEZHRA-
WA M A7 P A - AN 52 E IR Bt E AR AT
BB A &) 2 % IE6,0000008 T (Z T F
JLEF £ 50000008 ) EHEEEEFRAR °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR B B M

For the Year Ended 30th April, 2010 BZE —E—ZFWA=+HILFE

[ =

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate
by the management to finance the Group’s operations and
mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The Group’s policy
is to regularly monitor current and expected liquidity requirements
and its compliance with lending covenants, and to arrange
additional banking facilities, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its financial liabilities based on the agreed repayment
terms. For non-derivative financial liabilities, the table has been
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay. The table includes both interest and principal cash
flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is based on interest rate at the end of the
reporting period.

Liquidity and interest rate tables

Weighted

average  Repayable

on demand

interest rate

it SRZLES 2
% HKSM

%

6.

Less than
1year

€@ I A
BREREEEERKEE)

BB % m b
EERRDESRRE AKBEEE
ERFBEREERIREANESNER
ReBEBHEBE UAXEENEHKZ
ERHESIBER S RERINF
E-AEEZBRA/TEMEERB AR
BEHRDHEEBTRUREETEER
MZBR WRBFBIMNRITRERE
MREBARRESHE UEMNEHRE
HEBREMORBHESFER -

TERFAHINAEESBRABNER
EEFRGHRBETZHTEOBNHBER -
BLETTESRABEMS  TRIORE
AEEAERERIRZEEEHE
MEEZAMBRBESREMEH T
ZERMERATHERE - EHNE
MERFHMNEZAET  REEK
BMOBBEHRAERBZNXGFERS
$ o

RBEERAER

Total
undiscounted Carrying
cash flows amount

AERRE
2E3F RERE

HKS'M K

Tto2years  2to3years
152%
HKSM

Tt —

H&BTT

2010 —B-BF

Trade and other payables B 5 R EHfE(FIE

Trust receipt loans - variable  {EFEHUEER — 28

Accrued expenses e B

Borrowings - variable BE-%8

Obligation underafinance ~ BYETAAIAIE

lease

2009 “BENE

Trade and other payables  Z5 R EMENFUR - 2 1 - - 13 13

Trust receipt loans - variable  {EFERIEER— 28 63 - 2 - - 2 2

Bill payables ENEE - - 1 - - ! 1

Accrued expenses [EETER - - 30 4 - 34 34

Borrowings - variable EE-%8 60 10 14 2 3 29 8
12 58 6 3 79 78
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value
The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined as follows:

the fair values of financial assets with standard terms and
conditions and traded on active liquid markets are
determined with reference to quoted market bid prices;
and

the fair values of other financial assets and financial
liabilities (including derivative financial instruments) are
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on discounted cash flow analysis. For an
option-based derivative, the fair value is estimated using
option pricing model.

The carrying amounts of short-term financial assets and financial
liabilities carried at amortised cost approximate their respective fair
values due to the relatively short-term maturity of these financial
instruments.

Fair value measurements recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position

At 30th April, 2010, the financial instruments that are measured
subsequent to initial recognition at fair value are available-for-sale
investments. The fair value measurements are derived from quoted
prices (unadjusted) in active market for identical assets.

TURNOVER

Turnover represents the amounts received and receivable for
goods sold by the Group to outside customers less sales returns
and discounts.

6.

@I A%

AFE
CHEERGBRABZAFEEEN

_|

XBEEGRRGHERELRA
BREMERIFIZIEMEEL
RFEDSEMBTEERE
mEE : &

HemEERSRAB(EE
TEEBMTAE)ZRAFETIAR
RBEREINBEEZ — R
NRAERAETE A ETLE

TAMmME RFERRBHEE
ERA MGG

HBERAIN R ZEHNEREERS
REEREEREASEZATFERS
REALESR T ARRERMBAZ
H o

AEEHBRRBRERZ R FE

=
RZE-ZTFWUA=ZTH ROTHE
RENAFEFEZERTARAH
HEREBE - A VEFEHAREER
BEMSE CBECREHAR)FL -

EXH
EXRBEASERIATFHEHER M
ZEREEYRBENGRIEERD LT
o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE SR MR
For the Year Ended 30th April, 2010 ZE =T —ZFWNA=1+HIFE

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

The Group has adopted HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments” with effect
from 1st May, 2009. HKFRS 8 is a disclosure standard that requires
operating segments to be identified on the basis of internal reports
about components of the Group that are regularly reviewed by the
chief operating decision maker (“CODM") for the purpose of
allocating resources to segments and assessing their performance.
In contrast, the predecessor Standard (HKAS 14,"Segment
Reporting”) required an entity to identify two sets of segments
(business and geographical) using a risks and returns approach,
with the entity’s “system of internal financial reporting to key
management personnel”serving only as the starting point for the
identification of such segments. In the past, the Group’s primary
segment was geographical segments by location of customers. The
adoption of HKFRS 8 has not resulted in a redesignation of the
Group's operating segment as compared with the primary segment
determined in accordance with HKAS 14 nor has the adoption of
HKFRS 8 changed the basis of measurement of segment profit or
loss and segment assets. Segment liabilities were not presented as
such information was not reported to the CODM.

Under HKFRS 8, reported segment information is based on internal
management reporting information that is regularly reviewed by
the executive directors, being the CODM of the Group.

The customers of the Group are currently located in the United
States of America (the “USA”), Hong Kong, Europe, the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC"), Philippines, Malaysia, Singapore and
other Asian countries (which represents aggregation of other
non-reportable operating segments under HKFRS 8). Consistent
with prior years, segment information reported externally was
analysed on the basis of the location of the customers, which is the
information reported to the CODM, for the purposes of resources
allocation and performance assessment of each location.
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8. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued)
Segment revenues and results
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by

reportable segment:

—g-%5
HK$'M
BEBT

7 WEM™ @)

b L E Y
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Turnover
2010

Segment results
DEHEE

2010

i

HK$'M

BEET

2009
—ETNF
HKS'M
BEBT

2009
—ETNF
HKS'M
ABEBT

External sales IhER 8 &
USA XE

Hong Kong B
Europe EM

PRC o
Philippines JFERE
Malaysia SR
Singapore N

Other Asian countries

Intersegment sales
USA

Hong Kong

PRC

Segment total
Eliminations

Group's revenue and
segment results

HAih T MBER

2 AR &
B
0
I

7 BPHEET

RSB et Ko ) BSR4

Depreciation of property, W MERREZ
plant and equipment e

Impairment loss on property, — #% « #23 N REZ
plant and equipment FBEEE

Losses arising from changes ESBIANEE
in fair value of derivative BEELEE
financial instruments

Imputed interest income BB R B E M IR
on non-current interest-free T8 7 R BUA
other receivable

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary & —RHEA R Z

g

Interest income for convertible  A] #AF& 1 e A% 2 |8,
preferred shares A

Unallocated corporate AN EERMS
management expenses

Interest on bank and ARAFAEEEEZ
other loans wholly repayable #8717 R EME TR~
within five years FE

DIREE N RIEE

Share of loss of an associate

BRI AT A (B518)

Profit (loss) before taxation
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8. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued)
The accounting policies of the operating segment are the same as
the Group's accounting policies described in Note 3. Segment
profit represents the profit earned by each segment without
allocation of corporate management expenses, depreciation,
impairment loss on property, plant and equipment, directors’
emoluments, share of loss of an associate, losses arising from
changes in fair value of derivative financial instruments, imputed
interest income on non-current interest-free other receivable,
interest income for convertible preferred shares, gain on disposal of
a subsidiary and finance costs. This is the measure reported to the
CODM for the purposes of resources allocation and performance
assessment.

Segment assets
The follows is an analysis of the Group's assets by reportable
segment:

Segment assets
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PRC Fh
Philippines JEEE
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Other Asian countries EAhZEMBEIR
Total segment assets NEEERLE
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Property, plant and equipment YD - 2 AR A
Inventories ey
Bank balances and cash IRITEEHRIMIRE
Other unallocated assets HEfhRDBELEE
Consolidated total assets RAEBEBA

N S I

47

53
27
13
16

156

75



QPL International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2010 §3}

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
4=

A MR MR

For the Year Ended 30th April, 2010 ZE —E—ZFA=+HILFE

76

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued)

Segment assets (continued)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, all assets are allocated to
operating segments other than property, plant and equipment,
interest in an associate, investment in convertible preferred shares
— loan portion, other receivable, inventories, deposits and
prepayments, available-for-sale investments, derivative financial
instruments and bank balances and cash. Liabilities are not
allocated to operating segments.

Other segment information not included in the
measurement of segment result

USA ESE
Hong Kong BB

PRC M
Philippines JEEE
Malaysia SR PE T
Singapore AN

HAh s MBI

Other Asian countries

Geographical information

The Group’s non-current assets other than interest in an associate,
investment in convertible preferred shares — loan portion,
derivative financial instruments and other receivable by
geographical location of the assets is amounted to HK$51 million
(2009: HK$53 million) which is located in the PRC.

Information about major customers

Only one single customer in the PRC contributed over 10% of the
total sales of the Group for the year which amounted to
approximately HK$79,000,000 (2009: HK$82,000,000).
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9.

OTHER INCOME

H I A

10'

Interest income for convertible preferred
shares (Note)
Imputed interest income on non-current

(Hret)

interest-free other receivable HWER B U A
Sales of by-products and scrap BIE M EERHH S
Sundry income HIEUA

Note:  In 2009, the amount included approximately HK$4 million interest
income from convertible preferred shares, which was settled in
form of ordinary shares of ASAT, the Company’s associate, in lieu of
cash.

TAXATION

AIARHE R M B

FEmE R B E AW IR Z

10.

22

Wi RZZEZAEFE LBBREEATHRK

B %% 2 F) B WA 494,000,000 7T
WIARQNR 2B & QNA &Rz &
BREXARERDMRS -

B 1A

The charge comprises: HIEZ H B8 -
PRC Enterprise Income Tax PR EATSRL

On 26th June, 2008, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed the
Revenue Bill 2008 which reduced corporate profits tax rate from
17.5% to 16.5% effective from the year of assessment 2008/2009.
Therefore, Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profit for both years.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as one of
the subsidiaries'assessable profit generated in Hong Kong is wholly
absorbed by tax losses brought forward and the other subsidiaries
operating in Hong Kong incur tax losses for both years.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law”)
and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the
PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1st January, 2008 onwards.
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For the Year Ended 30th April, 2010 & =&

TAXATION (continued)

—ZEMA=TRILEFE

10.

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit (loss)
before taxation per the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income as follows:

Profit (loss) before taxation

Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of 16.5%

Tax effect of expenses not deductible
for tax purpose

Tax effect of income not taxable
for tax purpose

Tax effect of non-assessable profits
(non-allowable losses) of offshore
operation

Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries
operating in PRC

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised

Utilisation of tax losses previously
not recognised

Effect of share of loss of an associate

Tax charge for the year

BruiATE N (E51R)

EEBFEBHHME165%
TAMBRAS 2 M2

BEZFRBAZREEE

BEEEB 2 BARD
i B (AT 30 8
BRI zZHETE

i ke all=TR R vl ol = R/NC|
TRMERZEE

*ﬁ%mﬁﬁﬁz
i 7% %

@%%m%ﬁ R IE 18

DIEBE R

REFEBRAX M

Details of deferred taxation are set out in Note 28.

PROFIT (LOSS) FORTHE YEAR

Profit (loss) for the year has been arrived
at after charging (crediting):

Reversal of allowance for bad and
doubtful debts

Auditor’s remuneration

Operating lease rentals in respect
of premises

11.

A E R A (B8R B M
GTA T S®HE:

REREFERR

% 6D B =
BFzEXHENES

REBEBRZEE

IR ()
AEERAXBESZEEZEEARR
P 1) B B B A (B 1B) < B BR A0 T

BERBEERAFISH VM L2

EFEm A (B 8R)




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
4=

A MR MR

For the Year Ended 30th April, 2010 ZE —E—ZFA=+HILFE

12.

EARNING (LOSS) PER SHARE 12. BEREAN(EE)
The calculation of the basic and diluted earning (loss) per share AARBEANELEREARB SR
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the F(E1E) i T 5| B ikt & -

following data:

Profit (loss) for the purposes of basicand ~ A AT E B R E AR K&
diluted earning (loss) per share BERANSE 2

i K (&5 18) (HKS96M & B8 7T)

Weighted average number of ordinary RAAFESRERR
shares for the purpose of calculating BMERF (BB 2

basic and diluted earning (loss) per share & 3/ A% 0 4 - 59 £ 767,353,549
The computation of diluted earning per share does not assume the BRAAAERETEESRNEZES
exercise of the Company’s outstanding share options as the ET-ZFNA=Z+RHILEFESRTFY
exercise price of the share options of the Company are higher than ME WA ESRES RN ET &R
the average market price per share for the year ended 30th April, BARAIHMRITEBEREDEITE-
2010.
The calculation of diluted loss per share for the year ended 30th EEHE_TEENFOA=-+ALTF
April, 2009, did not assume the exercise of the share options of the ExR#EEEER UEBRKITE
Company because such assumption would result in a decrease in AprlzERE REALERERE
loss per share. BEREERD -
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13.

DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ emoluments

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the five (2009: six)

directors were as follows:

TLLi

FR%
HK$'M

Kevin

KT Kwan*
B8

HKS'M
BEBTT

13.

Patrick
HP Phen
HTF
HKS'M
BEETT

EEShEEMS

EEME
ENKENER(ZZETNAF: NB)E
EEEZHMEmT

Robert
Robert Charles Alex
TTSze Nicholson CBWong
] BEE FiRB
HKS'M HKS'M HKS'M
BEET ASEBET BAHEBT

80

BEET

2010 —E-EF
Fees e
Otheremoluments  E &
Salaries and e REA
other benefits =l
Share-based payment ARR(D A FEERE 2
(NS
2009 —EENF
Fees ik 1.7 - - 0.5 04 03 129
Other emoluments  H A4
Salaries and e REHAM
other benefits =nl - 12 04 - - - 1.6
1.7 12 04 05 04 03 14.5
* The director who resigned on 23rd December, 2008. * REER_ZEENF+_A=-+=

HBHE-
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13.

DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS
(continued)

Employees’ emoluments

The emoluments payable to directors of the Company as approved

13.

by the Board on the recommendation of the remuneration
committee, are having regard to their individual duties and
responsibilities with the Company, remuneration benchmark in the
industry and prevailing market conditions.

The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals included two
(2009: three) executive directors of the Company, whose
emoluments are included above. The aggregate emoluments of
the remaining three (2009: two) highest paid individuals are as
follows:

EErEEME®

BEME
BNARRESTIHME N2 EHME
BEgZHBRERERRBERENRAAA
ZENBBEERBE TEFHEER
ERTRBEESHE -

TERSFHALREMEB(ZZEZN
F ZR)ARAHTEE HEZM
SEIREX HBR=H(ZFZNF:
MB)BESHFMALTZBMSBENT

HAFo 2B RHEHAM
BWHas

Basic salaries, allowances and
other benefits-in-kind

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

HK$1,000,001-HK$1,500,000

In both years, no emoluments were paid or payable to the directors
or the five highest paid individuals (including directors and
employees) as an inducement to join the Company or as
compensation for loss of office.

1,000,00178 7T — 1,500,00075 7T _

- 2

EZ2MEN FTHAER

.
i

2010
—z-%%

2009
—EENF
Number of Number of
employees

BEAH

employees

BEAHK

RMEFER NEBEXEETMAD M
IENTEELLEREZESFMAL(E
REFREBRIZHMES FRMEAR
AR E BRI fRE -
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14.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

cosT

At 15t May, 2008
Additions

Disposals and write-offs
Disposal of a subsidiary

At 30th April, 2009
Additions

At30th April, 2010

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION AND

IMPAIRMENT LOSS
At Tst May, 2008
Provided for the year
Impairment loss

Eliminated on disposals and write-offs
Eliminated on disposal of a subsidiary

At 30th April, 2009
Provided for the year

At 30th April, 2010

CARRYING VALUES
At30th April, 2010

At 30th April, 2009

At 1st May, 2008

R
R-ZZTNFRLA-A
NE

& R
HE-KMERT

RZZENFWA=TH
NE

R-ZE-ZFEMA=1H
RAFERAERR
RZBENFRA—H
TEERE

BEER
HERKEE RS
HE— R E QR

R-ZZZFAEMA=TA
TEERE

R-Z-ZEMA=+H

REE
R-Z2-2FMA=1H

RIZENFEOA=TH

RZZENFLA-H

Leasehold
improvements

14.

Furniture,
fixtures and
equipment
B RE
&
HKSM

ME-BBERRE

Plantand
machinery

Motor
vehicles

A
HKSM

e —

HE&BTT

BERRE
HKSM
BEAT

Moulds,
toolings
and
production
films
I%-IER
EERER

72 168 3 657 359 1,259
- 1 - 1 4 6
- - (1) - - (M
- (16) - (92) (75) (183)

72 153 2 566 288 1,081
1 - 1 2 4 8

73 153 3 568 292 1,089

59 165 2 572 339 1137
5 2 - 1 3 21
4 - - 38 8 50
- - (1) - - )
- (15) - (90) (74) (179

68 152 1 531 276 1,028
2 - 1 6 1 10

70 152 2 537 277 1,038
3 1 1 31 15 51
4 1 1 35 12 53

13 3 1 85 20 122

bt E- HwBEREREBEEB D AEK
EEEFE HUBFHOT

The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated
on a straight-line basis at the following useful lives:

Leasehold improvements 8 years MERE 84

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5-8 years R HEREE 5EQHF

Motor vehicles 5 years RE 5

Plant and machinery 6-12 years R NLHE 6&2 124

Moulds, toolings and production films 6 years I -TAKEER 64F
KR
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14.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
The net book value of motor vehicles of HK$1 million includes an
amount of HKS1 million in respect of assets held under finance
leases.

For the year ended 30th April, 2009, the directors conducted a
review of the Group's property, plant and equipment and
determined that the property, plant and equipment were impaired
due to decrease in sales arising from the global financial crisis since
late 2008 and the uncertainty of the outcome of ASAT Financial
Restructuring, as disclosed in Note 15. In the light of the
uncertainty of the outcome of ASAT Financial Restructuring and
the expiry of the forbearance agreements among ASAT and its
subsidiaries (collectively the "ASAT group”) and its lenders in August
2009, the cash flow forecast had been prepared on a basis that no
future sales to ASAT group anticipated for the forecast period
commencing August 2009. Sales to ASAT group for the year ended
30th April, 2009 was HK$82 million and accounted for 30% of the
Group's turnover. Accordingly, impairment losses of HK$50 million
had been recognised. During the year, the directors conducted a
review of the Group's property, plant and equipment and
determined that no further impairment nor reversal of impairment
for property, plant and equipment is required.

The recoverable amounts of the relevant assets have been
determined on the basis of value in use calculation. That calculation
uses cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
the management covering a one-year period with a projection of
another four years, and discount rate of 17% (2009: 17%). Cash
flows in the projection period assumed a zero growth rate.

14.

ME -BERIXEBE®

VR E 7 BR T E A1,0000008 7T 0 B
BEAREREMRLYAFEE 21000000
BT e

HE-_ZTZAFNWA=ZTHILFE"
EERITAEBE I ME  HERZE
BRARE-_ZEZNFRERE 2RI
SR BRI E T B LM Es
FI MR ELENYBEA
ER -MWE - BERBEDRRE-
MR M AREEETER XM B EMR
R OMEBERXRENBQA(HTEIL
KX EBDEZERAR L ZLEHE
NHBFENR=_ZEZEAFNAEEH 1R
eREEHNDEEHE -_ZZTALFN
AMBZENSEEATE R KR XEER
EHEMNBREECEERE -HE
CERRNFEFNA=FTHIFE AL
3 BIYEH 2 85 & /282,000,000 TT
EERAEBREXE0% AL B#
2 8 1B JE5 18 50,000,000 78 JT ° B AR E
EERIAEBE 2 ME  HEREZE
WREHBERME HERREEE
—F R E N RRE -

FREEzN KB e IBREERE
BrzitEmMET LA EERAREE
BEMETRE —FHERSIIMNF
HETE R 2 B R TEE IR & = 78 8
AR17%(ZFEZENEF  17%) 2 AR X -
FEAHERNZEHEERESATERE
HE -
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INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

Listed investment outside FENINZ ETHERE
Hong Kong

Cost of investment B

Share of post-acquisition losses DMEWEEER 2 EE R
and reserves 1

Quoted value of listed investment B3R &2 BE

Interest in an associate represents the Group’s 43.22% (2009:
43.22%) interest in the issued ordinary share capital of ASAT, a
limited company incorporated in the Cayman Islands and its shares
were listed on the NASDAQ prior to 17th April, 2008. ASAT group
are principally engaged in the provision of assembly and testing of
integrated circuits in the PRC.

On 25th March, 2008, ASAT received a notice from the NASDAQ
Listing Qualifications Panel determining the delisting of ASAT’s
securities from the NASDAQ market and the trading of its shares
were suspended at the open of business on 27th March, 2008. On
17th April, 2008, ASAT announced that its American Depository
Shares ("ADS") started trading on the Over-the-Counter Bulletin
Board under the symbol “ASTTY.PK” and were delisted from
NASDAQ.

15.

BERNTES

1st May, 2008
ZENF
AHA—H

HKS'M
BEAT

23 19
(23) (19)
12 59

B AR RsEASBEMENHE 2B
EFMEKL BER ARG LMKXE B
TEBRBRBA Z2432%(Z T N, F -
B D BEXIBEMRZZZE
JVE M A+ + B Bl FENASDAQ F 77 » £
EKXEBFTZEHPEHRESEKERE
fic K2 08 & AR 75 o

F*%%)\$:H*+£E'%ﬁw€
Ur BINASDAQ E T E /MR Z B A
BHERBRBBEK N 2E %%NASDAQ
mEBRE KBAZZENF=ZA=+
tE%“Mﬁﬁ%Fﬁﬁffmmx
2B - R_ZEENFNA++LH-
KXEHMERELEL(ETE %J)
BATASTTYPK] 2 RSEEE B I5INR B &
B R B9 16 B & I £ NASDAQER f& -
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15.

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

On 2nd March, 2009, ASAT has announced that it entered into
forbearance agreements with its lenders. Under the terms of the
forbearance agreements, the lenders agreed to forbear from
exercising their rights and remedies against ASAT group arising out
of certain designated defaults until 30th August, 2009, subject to
certain early termination events. On Tst June, 2009, ASAT
announced that it has reached an agreement in principle with a
majority of its creditors on the terms of a consensual financial
restructuring of the obligations of ASAT group (“ASAT Financial
Restructuring”). On 31st August, 2009, ASAT announced that it has
received an extension forbearance period of an additional 30
consecutive days till 29th September, 2009. On 3rd January, 2010,
ASAT announced that it had reached an agreement with a third
party to sell all the shares in ASAT Limited, a wholly owned
subsidiary of ASAT, which was itself the indirect parent of ASAT
Semiconductor (Dongguan) Limited, the only operating subsidiary
of ASAT, and the transaction was completed on 4th February, 2010.
On 11th February, 2010, the shareholders of ASAT passed
resolutions to place ASAT into voluntary liquidation and appoint
joint voluntary liquidators to implement the liquidation. On 25th
March, 2010, the Supervision of the Grand Court of Cayman Islands
granted the orders for voluntary liquidations of ASAT and also
appointed the liquidators. The Group's interest in an associate was
transferred to available-for-sale investments as it was no longer
able to exercise significant influence over the associate upon the
commencement of voluntary liquidations of ASAT.

The Group has recognised share of loss of the associate up to 24th
March, 2010 amounting to HK$6 million (2009: HK$S9 million), the
date when the Group lost significant influence in the associate. The
recognition of the share of loss of associate has resulted in reducing
the carrying amount of the Group’s net investment in ASAT,
comprising the investment cost in and the loan portion of
investment in convertible preferred shares of ASAT (Note 16), to nil
as ASAT is in a net liabilities position. The Group has discontinued
the recognition of its share of losses of ASAT. The accumulated
unrecognised share of losses amounted to HK$383 million as at
30th April, 2008.

15.

BeENTER®E
RZETZNF=ZA_-H %EKXEMH
BEEEZERAFTLEHENBZ R

BEREBEMNHBECKI ERXRARE
METHEEENTITE R F o H &K
XNEBZEAMNRETEREL @R &
E_ZZTHAENA=ZTB AL ER
ETRAKLESEHRS -R_ZFZF AN
FRA—B #EXEMHE EE KX
DEEARBERXEBEER 2 LFME
M EANRE XM BEMR]DGRE
RERAEHZE- R_EFEALFENA=
+—H #RKXEMFRECEERER
BB TRZ2HRABIINEE =1
A BEEZ-_Z2ZThhFhLA=Z+hABL-
R-_E—FTF—-FHF=ZH %KXEH
MHEEE2ENBAREKRIEIESE
RAG2HBRNE—RE=TEKD
FOEAKNBBEBERADAS BEK
XM — BB R SRR
(R)BERARZEEERAR 5B
RZE—ZEZF_ANHER - R _F
—EF A+ —H #HRXZ2KER
BRFER NETBEREE  WEEH
FEREEEAETBEE - R_ZT—F
FZA-t+HB HEBEEXREREZE
BRESEERNABBEETEEBEEA -
RS CABREREEREAEET
EBHZBEARTFEEAEE
WMASEBERBE R EEEREA
HFERE -

AEEEBRADLHZBEERAEZE =
T EF-AZ+THBEEIXREEKX L
HZBERRZEAFEHAZEHZ
B 18 - & 8160000008 L (Z T T L F -
9,000,000 L) ° B RN K X E R B & )F
BN MERSEHL AR EEE
BAEERLRX2EEFEERE
(BIELERCATBRBRE LR ZTERKAN
MEEZERBD(HF16))RES -
AEEERIEREDEEERLZE
B-R_ZETZNFMWA=Z+H " Btk
R 1h 15 18 /383,000,000 JT °
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16. INVESTMENT IN CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED 16. THRBREERRE TE&@
SHARES/DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL TH
INSTRUMENTS

1st May, 2008
—EENF
AA—H

HKS'M
BEAT

Investment in convertible AR BRI E
preferred shares — loan portion — B3RS 43 38
Less: Loss allocated in excess A BHERERAZ
of cost of investment 2oiEE (43) (38)
Derivative financial instruments reclassified as non-current assets: THESRMTESEFPBEAIERBEE

2009 1st May, 2008
—EFEN\F

ZEENEF HA—H
HKS'M HKS'M
BEBTT BEABT

Investment in convertible preferred B]#f& 8 e ARIR &

shares — conversion option — AR R 1 12
Investment in warrants RN E - 1
1 13
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16.

INVESTMENT IN CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED
SHARES/DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

In July 2005, the Company entered into a securities purchase
agreement with Asia Opportunity Fund, L.P. and its affiliate funds
("AOF"), which held approximately 28.9% of the issued ordinary
shares of ASAT, and ASAT in relation to a USD15 million financing
(equivalent to approximately HK$117 million) for ASAT, of which
the Group contributed USD7.5 million (equivalent to approximately
HKS$58 million). ASAT issued 300,000 convertible preferred shares
for a total price of USD15 million (equivalent to approximately
HKS$117 million), representing an issue price of USD50 per
convertible preferred share, to be purchased by AOF and the Group
in equal proportions. In October 2005, the Group invested USD7.5
million (equivalent to approximately HK$58 million) for 150,000
convertible preferred shares for the equivalent amount at an issue
price of USD50 per convertible preferred share at a preferred
dividend rate of 13% per annum, payable semi-annually in arrears.
Each convertible preferred share will, at any time and from time to
time, be convertible, at the option of the holder, into ordinary
shares of ASAT at an adjusted conversion price resetting equal to
USD0.065 per ordinary share (equivalent to USD0.975 per ADS),
subject to customary adjustment for share splits, dividends, re-
combinations and similar transactions. The contractual exercise
period for conversion option is from 27th October, 2005 to 4th May,
2011.

At any time on or after 4th May, 2011, ASAT shall, at the option of
the Group, redeem, in whole or in part, any outstanding convertible
preferred shares, in cash. The convertible preferred shares shall be
redeemable, in cash, at the option of ASAT, in whole or in part, at
any time at a price per share equal to the higher of (i) the issue
price, plus an amount equal to the accrued and unpaid preferred
shares dividends to the date of redemption; and (ii) the aggregate
fair market value of ASAT's ordinary shares into the which the
convertible preferred shares are convertible. The effective interest
rate applicable to loan portion of the preferred shares of ASAT was
estimated at 36% per annum. In the opinion of the directors, the
fair value of the put option of the Group and the call option of
ASAT were immaterial at the end of the reporting period.

16.

TRERELERERE TEEH
IR

(TAOF] #H B & FE B BT LB
H289%) M BRI ARRNESE
15,000,000 7T (48 & 7 #9117,000,000/% 7T)
(H A& E 1 & 7,500,000 % 7T) (M & 7
#9580000008 JTL)E] AL FE H B E Wik o
L8 S EE 1T 42 (B 1% /515,000,000 3 JT (4E
& 7 #9117,000,0007 7T ) Z 300,000 f& A #2
BELERENETEASRITARESL
B50E JT) - HAOF N A& E L E 5 L
PIEE W-_ZTERE+H A&EED
& & 7,500,000 7T (48 & 74 #958,000,000 7
TR BT ETRATRIRE L RS0E T
88 A 150,000 i% AT 2 f% 18 50 I - 18 R R R
BEREFBY BEEX M - FRAH
BERABRABEELTEHRIETAE ARE
ERABEESABRESR Y ®AR0065
ETL(HERERTEFTFEFH0975% L)
B AKX ZEREK  MZE®RA
RROFMA RE EFHAHEREEAR
SIEHEERAE - BREEBRZEH
TEHA-_ZEERF+A_T++HHEHZE
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BEREZASBEZEZNRS T AE
Bl 2R ETMEBOREEZTREE
5T B o B4R ST AT GE 12 0T ] B A A 3R
A AEO 2K AT RRE TR
HEBREBHEER MIRESE - ()ET
E SMEFHREEASHZ R RAK
8 S B B 2 FREE ¢ R (i AT 48 R
BEARBBREZRXERR ZAFD
BERBE BRARNKERXELRERE
MZERENEGHEAREF6% - EFR
RO AEBREHEREKRXRED
BAREHEEREZATELTE
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16.

88

INVESTMENT IN CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED
SHARES/DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

As arrangement fee for the issue of the preferred shares, ASAT has
agreed to issue to each of the Group and AOF five-year warrants to
purchase 2.5 million ordinary shares, exercisable at a price of
USDO0.01 per ordinary share (equivalent to USDO0.15 per ADS). In
addition, ASAT issued to each of the Group and AOF an additional
five-year warrants to purchase 7.5 million ordinary shares,
exercisable at a price of USD0.01 per ordinary share (equivalent to
USDO0.15 per ADS). Accordingly, the Group was issued warrants to
subscribe for a total of 10 million ordinary shares of ASAT. On issue
of the warrants, no sums are payable to ASAT by the Group. The
consideration of the Group was in form of the conversion, on a
dollar-for-dollar basis, of its account receivable due from ASAT on
27th October, 2005. The contractual exercise period for warrants is
from 27th October, 2005 to 27th October, 2010.

The fair value of the straight loan feature of the convertible
preferred shares was determined by using discounted cash flow
calculation based upon a group of debt instruments with similar
credit rating and structure and the observable financial data of
ASAT. The effective interest rate for the straight loan feature was
estimated at 36% per annum at initial recognition.

As described in Note 15 to the consolidated financial statements,
the shareholders of ASAT passed resolutions to place ASAT into
voluntary liquidation and appointed joint voluntary liquidators to
implement the liquidation in March 2010. In the opinions of the
directors of the Company, as a result of such events, the recoverable
amount of the loan portion of the investment in convertible
preferred shares was zero and the fair value of the conversion
option of the convertible preferred shares and the warrants were
also approximately zero, resulting in losses arising from changes in
fair values of approximately HKS1 million recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

At 30th April, 2009, the fair value of the conversion option of the
convertible preferred shares and the warrants were determined by
using binomial model.

16.

TRERELERERE TEEH
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16.

17.

INVESTMENT IN CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED
SHARES/DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Key inputs into the binomial model were as follows:

16.

TREELREE TEERE
IR

THEHABAZEZEHABBEOT

At 30th April, 2009

Share price BB
Volatility of share price RE (B IE
Risk free rate 42 [ g 1 =
Dividend yield fg B =

Option life of conversion option

As at 30th April, 2009, the fair values of the conversion option of
the convertible preferred shares and the warrants valued by Vigers
Appraisal & Consulting Limited, a firm of independent international
assets valuers, amounted to approximately USDO0.13 million or
equivalent to approximately HKS$1 million and approximately
USDO0.02 million or equivalent to approximately HK$0.15 million
respectively, resulting in losses arising from changes in fair values of
approximately HK$12 million recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

OTHER RECEIVABLE

On 20th February, 2009, the Group entered into an agreement to
dispose of a wholly owned subsidiary, Talent Focus Industries
Limited (“TFIL") and the disposal was completed before 30th April,
2009. TFIL has agreed with the Group to repay the outstanding
amount due to the Group of HK$7 million, which is unsecured and
interest-free, in seven monthly equal instalments from 1st
September, 2010 to 31st March, 2011. Accordingly, the amount has
been classified as non-current as at 30th April, 2009 and reclassified
to current asset and is included in “trade and other receivable”in
Note 19 to the consolidated financial statements. The fair value of
the other receivable at the date of disposal of TFIL was estimated to
be HKS4 million which is determined based on a discount rate of
29.7%. The carrying amount at 30th April, 2009 and 2010 included
imputed interest of HK$1 million and HK$2 million respectively.

AR 12 2 BRE F B
Option life of warrants TR 7 2 B A A

17.

USD 0.0653 7T
150%

0.91%

0%

2 years4F

1.5 years®

RZZZTHAENMA=+8B ABIH
BREEGMEMTREINEETHERS
AR QA G E 2 ]85 E T IRBEH B
BREEREABREZZLAFEED ALY
130,000 7T (48 & 7 491,000,000 7T )
K #9 /20,0003 JT(#8 & 7 49150,0008
L) AMREAEEARAREERA
T {E & B E £ 2 F5 18 471200000078 7T °

H fih FE W R 1E
R-_ZTETENFE_RF-+H KEBHZ]
Y—EWpm HE2EMBLARKE
EXERARA(RE) HEERNZZ
ZAFMNA=Z+HAIEK - BEERK
SEHER=ZTE—ZEFNLA—HBEZ
T——FZAZ+—HEAUMERXK
EOTHEEEIEAEE 2 HKRER
& K 48 % 8 FXIE 7,000,000 7T © A It
ZHRER_ZEZENFNA=1+HSHE
BIERS TEFHDEAERDEE I
AR EYBHRERNTIOZIESRE
MEKRRE] REE®RESER - it
FE U SR IR 2 A B 1f & A4,000,00078 TT -
TR BRI R 7%E T - N _EZENF
F_E-ZEFNA=tHZERHEER
FEHEE R B 9 511,000,000 7T & 2,000,000
BT e
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18.

19.

920

INVENTORIES

Raw materials and consumables
Work in progress
Finished goods

TR BB FER
LR,
L

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables
Less: Allowance for bad and
doubtful debts

Receivable in respect of disposal
of a subsidiary — due within
one year (Notes 17 and 29)

Other receivables

H 5 UGHRIR
B RIERRERE

HE—RWBAFZ
JEUGRIE
——FREHE

(Hit17%29)

HAb EUCIE

18. FE&

1st May, 2008
—ETNEF
hH—H

HKS'M
BEAT

19 26
4
4

27 38

19. ESREMERRE

1st May, 2008
—EENF
hH—H
HKS'M
A&

32 54

m 3)
31 51
2 -

1 6
34 57
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19.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

The Group allows a credit period ranging from 30 to 90 days to its
trade customers. The following is an aged analysis of trade
receivables net of allowance for bad and doubtful debts presented
based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period:

ESZRHMEKRKE®
AEBHTEHGEFPZEEHRN T30
FOH RMEBPBERE  ZHEIW
HRENMBRZEBEREZE ZERK
ST

Within 30 days 30BA

Between 31 and 60 days 31260H
Between 61 and 90 days 61£290H
Over 90 days 90H LA =

Before accepting any new customer, the Group will apply an
internal credit assessment policy to assess the potential customer’s
credit quality and define credit limits by customer. Management
closely monitors the credit quality of trade receivables and
considers the trade receivables that are neither past due nor
impaired to be of a good credit quality. Included in the Group's
trade receivable balance are debtors with aggregate carrying
amount of HK$14 million (2009: HK$8 million) which are past due as
at the reporting date for which the Group has not provided for
impairment loss. The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.

The following is an aged analysis of trade debtors which are past
due but not impaired:

REMARTEFAN AEESLH
TABEETIZER FRERFZ
FEEEXRT AR ESEPCEER -
ERERNERESRERFEZE
Bz THARATEABHTIERE
2EZREWBFEAERTIEES -
AEBESRERFBESD  BIEE
M 42 {8 4 14,0000008 TT( =T F N F -
8,000,000 7T ) S B ¥R} B Bf & 0 Af M AR
SBEWRIERREBBEEERBZRIE-
AEBVER M SEHREFETMIER

O
oo °

CRRBETEREZESEKUREAEZ
R MTaT -

Past due within 90 days #HIS0A A

Based on the historical experience of the Group, trade receivables
which are past due but not impaired are generally recoverable.

REASEZ LR C@HELER
B85 BYKRE KRR AYKE -
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19.

20.

92

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
The following is the movement in the allowance for bad and
doubtful debts:

19.

B % & H 1t B WK (1)
REBBHEZEHMT -

At beginning of year REH
Reversal of allowance for bad and REZREERD
doubtful debts

At end of year REL

Included in the allowance for bad and doubtful debts were
individually impaired trade receivables with aggregate balance of
HKS1 million which had been in severe financial difficulties for the
year ended 30th April, 2009.

TRADE RECEIVABLE DUE FROM AN ASSOCIATE
The Group allows a credit period of 30 days to its associate. The
following is an aged analysis of trade receivable due from an
associate, which is non-interest bearing, at the end of the reporting
period:

0-30 days 0£30H
Over 30 days 30B A E

The trade receivable due from an associate was not past due at the
end of the reporting period. The Group did not hold any collateral
over this balance.

20.

IR B B IR 4 5 51,000,000
TZEBREESEKRE BER
HRARBE_ZZAFNA=+H1
FEBRRNBRENIEREH-

EWEEQT 2ESRAE
AEBHRTHEBERARZEEHR30
B e RS B AR - R DA
T BESRBAZKRESITWT

1st May, 2008
—ETNF
HFH—H

Y
BEAT

7 14
13
13 27

H\$ REBRARRE  BRBE QA2
BHRERABE - AEEIW &R
#ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁuu"
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21.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 21.

Listed equity securities in BB LETWRAZRS -
Hong Kong, at fair value BATE

Listed equity securities outside EFBLASMEE _F TR
Hong Kong, at fair value BH o BmATE

At the end of the reporting period, the available-for-sale
investments are stated at fair value, which have been determined
based on bid prices quoted in an active market.

Particulars of the investee companies are as follows:

HEERE

1st May, 2008
ZEN\F
AHA—H

HKS$'M

4 18

RBEEHEERK AIHEESRER
RFEINR A2EERTHEMME
ABEE-

FIiRERRIZHBOT :
Proportion of

nominal value of
issued share

Place of capital held
Name of company incorporation Principal activities Class of shares held by the Group
AEEMFE BT
NEEH /B SZ 3t B FEXEW R R 2 BB IRAE{E LA
Melcolot Limited Cayman Islands Provision of network Ordinary shares 3.4%
("Melco”) infrastructure solutions
and services
FERYBR AT FHEHE REUEBEREERATR TER 3.4%
( [FZRER¥] ) N AR 75
ASAT Cayman Islands Provision of assembly and  Ordinary shares 43.22%
testing of integrated
circuits in the PRC
98 FMERE RPBRHENER - BAK 4322%
e SRR

Melco is a company listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the
Stock Exchange while ASAT's ADS traded on the Over-the-Counter
Bulletin Board under the symbol “ASTTY.PK".

HMEBERYRBIMBIER EHAA
LRk X 2 FAFERE 7 A A TASTTY.PK] 2 R
REXEGINZHHBRAKEE -
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22. BANKBALANCES AND CASH 22.

The bank balances of the Group carried at prevailing market
interest rates ranging from 0.01% to 0.36% (2009: 0.01% to 3%) per
annum.

23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 23.
The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented
based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period:

Trade payables B S ENRIA
Within 30 days 30H A
Between 31 and 60 days 31£260H
Between 61 and 90 days 61290H
Over 90 days 90HE

Other payables E At T FIE

The credit period on purchases of goods is ranging from 30 to 90
days. The Group has financial risk management policies in place to
ensure that all payables within the credit timeframe.

24. TRUST RECEIPT LOANS AND BILL PAYABLES 24,

Secured trust receipt loans B ETWIEER
Bill payables ARNES

At the end of the reporting period, bill payables were non-interest
bearing and aged within 30 days.

Trust receipt loans carry interest and the effective interest rates
(which are also equal to contracted interest rates) range from 6% to
7% (2009: 6% to 7%) per annum.

94

RITEBRRES
AEBZRITERIZET F001%ZE036%
(ZEBEZRF001%%3%) 2B ITH 5
ST B o

B R HEAMEMNKE
BoRARERRE PSR EE
ERHMEFZRESNMT :

2009 1st May, 2008
—EENE
—ETNF AA—H

HK$'M HKS'M
BEAT

3 11
2 5
1 4
2 8
8 28
5 10

13 38

BREZEEHR0EN0H AEER
EMBEREEREK BRMABEEN
RRALEBHEEMR -

FERRBERRENRE

2009 1st May, 2008
ZZEENF

ZEENEF HA—H
HKS'M HKS'M
BEBT

3 10

RBEEBEERE BANZHEIT A5t
B BRERA30BMUA -

EHRWEBEERATE  EEEF X
ERENFNEINTFEFHEIN(ZF
TAE 6%ET%)
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25.

BORROWINGS

Bank loans repayable within
one year (Note a)
Unsecured bank loan (Note b)

Loans from a director repayable
on demand (Note ¢)

Unsecured loans
Secured loan

Carrying amount repayable:
On demand or within one year

More than one year,

but not exceeding two years
More than two years,

but not more than five years

Less: Amounts due within
one year shown
under current liabilities

AR —FREEZ
RITERH ita)
BEEMRITER
(B1itb)
BREREEZ %
EEERME)

EE LN
BEHEMER

e RIAKREE :
AR B R K
R—FREE
HiE—FE
NS
838 M F B
PRAEF

BoRBEBEET
Fim—FR
28 2 3R

25.

B&

1st May, 2008
—ETNEF
hH—H

HKS'M
BEAT

12 13
6 _
10 10
28 23
16 10
12 13
28 23
24
2
2
28
(24)
4
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25.

(a)

(b)

(0

BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes:

The loans were secured by certain plant and equipment of the
Group and carried interests at standard lending rate in the PRC.
The range of effective interest rates (which were also equal to
contracted interest rates) on the Group’s variable rate borrowings
were approximately 6% per annum for the current year (2009: 6%
per annum). The loans at 30th April, 2009 were denominated in
Renminbi.

The bank loan is unsecured, bear interest at Hong Kong prime rate
plus 0.5% per annum and will be repayable by instalments up to
April 2012. The weighted average effective interest rate on the
bank loan is 5.8% per annum (2009: 5.8% per annum).

The loans are advanced from Mr. Li Tung Lok, a director and a
substantial shareholder of the Company, which are interest-free,
unsecured and repayable on demand. Subsequent to 30th April,
2010, the director agrees not to demand the repayment in full or
in part of the loans due from the Group on or before 30th June,
2011,

Borrowings that are denominated in currencies other than the
functional currencies of the relevant group entities are set out
below:

25.

ER-1E))

(a)

WERNUAERMzE THERRE
EIE 18 Wik BB R EER K&t
BE-AFEEFEEBEZAFEER
FEEERENNXR)BEBNAS
FU(ZTEZNF: BFe6%n) o N =
TTANFNA=ZF+H EFRUAR
MR BT

RITERAEER KEERER
Bl &G F5%st B WAED HE
B HE-_T—_—€PWAAL-RTT
BERZMEFHERFNE BT F58%
(ZZEZTNF  FF58%)°

EFRTHARAEERIERRS
RZEEERN  BREE  EBEMLZ
EREE-R_T-—TFMA=+
PR ZBERETER _-_FT——
FRAZTHHZAERKBEERAE
B@ERz2HAMBOER -

REBEEEBZNREBUIINZE
BEMIEZEEHIMT

926

Borrowings denominated in RMB

UARBINEZREE
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26. OBLIGATION UNDER A FINANCE LEASE

The Group leased motor vehicle under a finance lease. The lease

BEMROEE
rEEREREROEEAE - BH
REIFE AR AR Z AR

26.

term is 2 years. Interest rate underlying obligation under a finance

lease is fixed at contract date at 4.25% per annum.

Amount payable under
finance lease

Within one year
In more than one year and
not more than two years

Less: future finance charges
Present value of lease obligation
Less: Amount due for
settlement within
12 months (shown

under current liabilities)

Amount due for settlement
after 12 months

REHNBHETATF425% °

Present value of minimum

Minimum lease payments

REAEXH

lease payments
BREEEXHZRE
2010 2009
—g-%%F —TINF
HK$'M HKS'M
BHEBET BEAT

2010
—g-%f
HK$'M
BEET

2009
—ETNF
HKS'M
BEBATT
BEBEAN
PE A+ R E

—FR
BB -—FEIRMF

B RRBERX

MOAEZRE

W BARTZ@EAR
B8 2 FR
GIR RS BIE
AT)

AR+EA%
BE 2R

AEEREMEAEDABBAAZL
HEEFEM-

The Group's obligation under a finance lease is secured by the
lessor's charge over the leased assets.
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Number of shares

Ko ®E

27. SHARE CAPITAL 27.
2010
“Z-2%
HK$'M
BEATR
Authorised: ETE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.08 each FORFRERAE
At beginning and end of year 0088 7L 2 LB
Redeemable preference shares BEE0RETLZ
of HK$0.02 each AEEE LR
Issued and fully paid: BETRAR
Ordinary shares of HK$0.08 each FUEREMBSETT
At beginning of year =il
Issue upon exercise of options PATT 0 B IR R B B 1T
At end of year FER
28. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 28.

At the end of the reporting period and during the year, deferred tax
liabilities (assets) have been recognised in respect of the temporary
differences attributable to the following:

767,353,549

s

Nominal Value
HE
2010
-4
HK$'M
BEER

2009

—ETNF
HKS'M
BEAT

1,500,000,000

500,000,000

767,353,549

EEREARE
ReEHBERREREFA AEEE
RATEREREZHERIBELEHRIRA
BEE) :

Accelerated tax

depreciation Tax losses Total
IniE B IE T B & B st
HKS'M HKS'M
BEATT BEETT
At Tst May, 2008 RZZEZNF
"THA—H 10 (10) -
Effect of change in tax rate MEEH o & @) 1 -
(Credit) charge to consolidated REEE 2 ERA®RE
statement of comprehensive (B ) #0 B
income ) 7 -
At 30th April, 2009 and 2010 RZEZENFR
—E-ZF
mA=+H 2 ) -

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax losses
of HK$496 million (2009: HK$533 million) available for offset against
future profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect
of HK$13 million (2009: HK$13 million) of such losses. No deferred
tax asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining HK$483
million (2009: HK$520 million) due to the unpredictability of future
profit streams. Tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.
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RBREEERE REEEADH
2 T 7% B 18496,00000058 T(Z T T 1L
F 1 533,000,000/ 7T) A FA 1B 4K 88 K 2R &
F-BMZESEERERECHBEEE
13,000,0007% 7T( = & & J1 & : 13,000,000
) 1B R A BB R R E A i I
8 L E £2483,0000008 T(ZZE T AL F
520,000,00078 T0) ERIELEFH B EE o 7
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29. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY
As disclosed in Note 17, the Group disposed of TFIL to an
independent third party for a total consideration of HK$4 million in
last financial year. The net assets of TFIL at the date of disposal were
as follows:

29.

HE—FXHEBAF
IV E AEBER E—E
BHREEER —EZBILFE=-HHER
&+ 48 X 1B A4,00000078 7T ° B 18 1
ERPHZEEFADNT

Net assets disposed of: EHEEEFE:
Property, plant and equipment = 4
Bank balances and cash WITHEBERERE 2 1
Inventories FE 3
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H th g R I8 3
Trade receivables due from an associate JEUR Bt NAE) 28 B RIE 1
Deposits and prepayments TR R T A 2
Trade and other payables g5 kHEHMERFKIE (5)
Accrued expenses et E R (5)
Amounts due to the Group (Note 17) JEN ARNEBPRIE M F17) @)
Gain on disposal e W 4
Total consideration @wRAE 4
Satisfied by: BATHAZA:
Cash Re
Consideration receivable (Note 19) FEW AR B (H 2 19)

4
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEFMEABRSRAFE:
Cash consideration ReRE 2
Bank balances and cash disposed of ERERTEHRLES M

Consideration receivable was unsecured, interest-free and
repayable in two instalments in July and August 2009 and were
subsequently settled.

The subsidiary disposed of did not contribute significantly to the
Group’'s cashflows or operating results for the year ended 30th
April, 2009.

FURESEEN 2BERAR-F
ENFLARNADMBXN XD
REREN-

HEZHBRAREASERE —
NFHA=ZFTBELEFEZRERM
REXBEYBEBEANFR -

= <
£

g
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FEFBEERS

FAN AEBRIANVTELRNEES
1,000,000 7T 2 ¥ % - #28 R EF] L
BEMHTHE -

BEXEE
RBEHEERE AEEARET
ZERFYFEMT :

30. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION 30.
During the year, the Group entered into finance lease
arrangements in respect of property, plant and equipment with a
total capital value at the inception of the leases of HKS 1 million.

31. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 31.
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had outstanding
capital commitments as follows:

Capital expenditure in respect of FHEEBEYEETYN
acquisition of property, plant and BRELGE B
equipment contracted for but not WMERPEBEEZ
provided in the consolidated financial mE - M RRE
statements - W:N

32. LEASE COMMITMENTS 32,

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments in
respect of premises for future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases, which fall due as follows:

MO EE

RBREHBEERE AEERE A
B EMOAREEARETEIRZ
BRZEEBEXHZIHAMNT :

Within one year —FR

In the second to fifth year inclusive E_ZERF
(BREEMSF)

Over five years g A

Leases are negotiated for a term of twenty years for certain
production facilities in the PRC and terms of one to three years for
other premises with fixed monthly rentals.

100

35
70
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33.

34.

RETIREMENT AND PENSION SCHEMES

The Group participates in two defined contribution schemes which
are an Employee Retirement Scheme registered under the
Occupational Retirement Scheme Ordinance (the “ORSO Scheme”)
and a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
established under the Mandatory Provident Fund Ordinance in
December 2000. The assets of these schemes are held separately
from those of the Group in funds under the control of trustees.

All full time employees are eligible to join the ORSO Scheme after
completion of three continuous months of service with the Group
and opt to contribute a fixed percentage of 3% or 5% of their
monthly basic salary whereas the Group contributes an equivalent
amount to that scheme. After December 2000, all employees
exceeding a specified income range are required to join the MPF
Scheme and contribute a fixed percentage (currently 5%) of their
relevant income but cap at a maximum amount of HK$1,000 per
month to the scheme, which contribution is matched by the
Group. For employees joining both schemes, the total
contributions made by each of the Group and the employees
which exceed the mandatory contributions required by the MPF
Scheme are paid to the ORSO Scheme as voluntary contribution.

The PRC employees of the Group are members of a state-managed
retirement benefit scheme operated by the PRC government. The
Group is required to contribute certain percentage of payroll costs
to the retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit
scheme is to make the specified contributions.

Contributions to the above schemes for the year ended 30th April,
2010 made by the Group amounted to HK$2 million (2009: HKS2
million).

PLEDGED ASSETS

In addition to the pledged assets as disclosed in Note 26, at 30th
April, 2010, plant and equipment with a carrying value of HK$5
million (2009: HK$24 million) were pledged to secure certain
banking facilities and bank loan granted to the Group.

33.

34.

BRAREEZSE

A B 2 0 EEE®KEE 55
RBREBBERAAEGINELZEER
BARGFETHERARFEDENR=_FF

ZE+_ARBRIELE S B
PlRZzBRBMERE2FE(RES
ED REFECEEEXEAERE
TRESHARAEBEENHFTH -

R

FMEZREEREERBEAEE R =
BAKRBHEGERSEBERIKE
WAl EFIRE R A # 23%K5%E T B
DHELHF MAEERNBARE
BHZAEFOHER - R_FTFTTHF
TR FMABLAETERASZEZ
BEVES2EBTRESE REBE
AWAZ B E B D CGRE &5%) % &t
BEHMR EHRRERABSE A1000
B MASERNNABRSEFEDH
Ko HR2EZMBAFEANEETS
AEEMEEZTBEZHABLEBL R
ECAEMAERFEREENTER
EERAKEE FRBERMER

AEEZHPBEREHEZ2 NP BERF
BHEZBEZRAENGE - AEEA
AEKBEANEFLHFEXRAETE
DT UEDHEBEREN - AEH
HRRABRGFECEAEERIELIERE

Ko

He 22— ZFNUA=Z1+HILFE"
7N 5 B 1) kol 5T & FA £ 52,000,000
BT (ZEZT AF 20000008 7T) ©

EEERKR

B e BEZEEMMEEN BN
T—-FFMA =+ B iR MEIES5000000
BIL(Z T T N F 1 24,000,000 JT) 2 #
REREDER UBRERTFTAER
2ETHRITHERBITERK -

101



QPL International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2010 &3

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE SR MR
For the Year Ended 30th April, 2010 EE =T —ZFWNA=+HIFE

35.

102

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

Equity-settled share option scheme:

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted
pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 29th November, 2006.
The purpose of the Scheme is to provide the eligible persons
(“Eligible Persons”) as defined in the Scheme with the opportunity
to acquire interests in the Company and to encourage the Eligible
Persons to work towards enhancing the value of the Company and
its shares for the benefit of the Company and its shareholders as a
whole. The Board of Directors of the Company may grant options
to Eligible Persons, including, but not limited to, the full-time
employees or directors (excluding Mr. Li Tung Lok) of the Company
and subsidiaries (the “Eligible Employee(s)”) or his or her associate.

The share option granted by the Company at nil consideration is
exercisable at any time for a period determined by its directors
which shall not be later than the day immediately preceding the
fifth anniversary of the date of grant, where the acceptance date
should not be later than 28 days after the date of offer. The exercise
price (subject to adjustment as provided therein) of the option
under the Scheme shall be determined by the Board of Directors
but shall not be less than the highest of (i) the nominal value of the
shares; (i) the closing price per share as stated in the daily
quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of grant, which
must be a business day; or (iii) the average closing price per share as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant of the
options.

As at 30th April, 2010, an aggregate of 35,395,750 share options
granted under the Scheme remained outstanding representing
4.6% of the issued share capital of the Company. The maximum
number of shares in respect of which the options may be granted
under the Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the issued share capital
of the Company at the date of approval of the Scheme. However,
the total maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding share options must not exceed 30% of
the issued share capital of the Company from time to time. The
number of shares in respect of which options may be granted to
any one grantee in any 12-month period is not permitted to
exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue in such 12-month
period up to and including the proposed date of grant, without
prior approval from the Company’s shareholders. No option shall
be granted to the Eligible Persons if the aggregate value of shares
which may be subscribed in respect of outstanding options exceed
(a) in case of an Eligible Employee, 5 times of his or her then gross
annual salary and (b) in any other cases, HK$5 million, or any other
amount approved by the Board of Directors either generally or on a
case by case basis.
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35.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

The following table discloses movements of the Company’s share
options held by the directors and employees during the year:

Option type

BRESR

Directors

8%

Employees

=

Exercisable at the end
of the year

Weighted average
exercise price

Date of grant Exercise price

R B

11th May, 2007 0.70
RZZZTLE
EA+—H
3rd December, 2009
RZEZNE
+-A=H
11th May, 2007 0.70
RZTTLE
TA+-H
3rd December, 2009
RoFETNE
+-A=H

0.455

0.455

RE BRI

mEFT6EE

Outstanding
at 1st May,
2009
R=ZZENE
TA-H

I K 17 £

UERHORERZARKZ (@)

TERFRBEEELREMBALARARE
BERFRZEE:

35.

Outstanding

at 30th April,

Forfeited 2010
R-ZB-2f
mAE=1H

ie K AT

Movements during the year
Granted Exercised

FRED

BRH BT

2,700,000 - - - 2,700,000
- 1,890,000 - - 1,890,000
16,425,000 - - (2,925,000) 13,500,000

- 17,599,750 (20,000) (274,000) 17,305,750

19,125,000 19,489,750 (20,000) (3,199,000) 35,395,750
28,990,500

HK$0.7038 T  HK$0.45538 7T  HK$0.45578 T  HKS0.67978 T  HK$0.56738 7T

The following table discloses movements of the Company’s share
options held by the directors and employees during prior year:

Option type

BRESSR

Directors

=

Employees

E&

Exercisable at the
end of the year

Date of grant Exercise price

BitiAH fT6EME
HKS
BT

11th May, 2007 0.70

RZZEZTLE

EA+—H

11th May, 2007 0.70

RZBELE

EA+—-H

REEB AT

Outstanding
at 1st May,
2008
R=ZZENF
BA-H

i K 17 &

TERBRBEEELREMBARABR
BREFZEE:

Outstanding
at 30th April,
2009
R-ZBENE
mA=t+H
i & 17 &

Movements during the year

Granted Transfer Forfeited

FREY
BRI 2%

4,650,000 - 1,800,000 (3,750,000) 2,700,000
22,875,000 - (1,800,000) (4,650,000) 16,425,000
27,525,000 - - (8,400,000) 19,125,000

19,125,000
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35.

104

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

In respect of the share options exercised during the year, the
weighted average share price at the date of exercise is HK$0.56.

Share options were granted on 11th May, 2007 and 3rd December,
2009 to different counterparties. Two-third of total share options
can be exercised at any time from the date of acceptance whereas

one-third of total share options can be exercised on and after the

first anniversary of the grant date, provided the grantee has been in

continuous employment with the Group for one year, until the

date immediately preceding the fifth anniversary of the grant date.

The fair values of the options determined at the grant dates of 11th
May, 2007 and 3rd December, 2009 using the binomial model were
approximately HKS5 million and HK$4 million respectively.

The following assumptions were used to calculate the fair values of

share options:

Grant date on

3rd December,

2009

Closing price of the Company's

shares on grant date HK$0.455
Exercise price HK$0.455
Risk-free interest rate 1.548%
Option life 4105 years
Expected volatility 75.5%
Expected dividend yield 0%

Grant date on
11th May,
2007

HK$0.70
HK$0.70
4.084%
41to 5 years
45%

0%

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical volatility

of the Company’s share price over the previous four and five years

prior to the issuance of share option.

The binomial model has been used to estimate the fair value of the

options. The variables and assumptions used in computing the fair

values of the share options are based on the directors’best

estimate. The value of an option varies with different variables of

certain subjective assumptions.
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36.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36. BBALXRS

In the ordinary course of its business, the Group entered into the RBBEBKP  KEE T HEEES#E
following transactions with related party: TR S :

(@)  ASAT group (@) HEXEH

(b)

(c)

Sales of integrated circuit HE SR E K S| BZIE -
leadframes, heatsinks and BY 2SR hnod 4R
stiffeners 82
Interest income for convertible AR E LR
preferred shares FE WA 9
Interest-free loans are obtained from a director, as disclosed b) M—BEFHEZEBER 5
in Note 25. BRI 25 HEE -
Compensation of key management personnel (c) TEEBAEZHM
The remuneration of directors and other members of key EENEMTEEBEBAEFNAN
management during the year as follows: ZEewmT

Short-term benefits = HA 1R A 15
Share-based payments PARR 0 73 E 5 2 A 5% -
15
The remuneration of directors and key management is EERTEEBABZHE T
determined by the remuneration committee having regard HEFEMZEEERERAARER
to the performance of individuals and market trends. MZBERETE -
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37.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

The following are the particulars regarding the Company’s

subsidiaries as at 30th April, 2010 and 2009 which principally affect
the results, assets or liabilities of the Group as the directors are of
the opinion that a full list of all the subsidiaries will be of excessive =2

length. These subsidiaries operate principally in the place of

incorporation unless otherwise indicated.

Name of subsidiary

HELAEH

The Industrial Investment Cayman Islands Investment holding 2,050 ordinary shares
Company Limited HERS RERR Of HKS1 each
WORERAE AT
ZERR
QPL (Holdings) Limited Hong Kong Investment holding 408,000,772 ordinary shares
REREERAA BE RERR of HK50.04 each
w3007 B REE
04T ERR
QPL Limited (Note a) Hong Kong Manufacture and sale 2 ordinary shares of HKS1
REARAE (Hita) 2% of integrated circuit eachand 1,000 non-voting
leadframes, heatsinks deferred shares of HKS1
and stiffeners each (Note b)
HERBESHER WhEBREEIETLZ
JRE HAER AR R10008 B R
g HEIBTLEREE
BRRG Wit
QPL(US)Inc. United States of America Distribution of integrated 150,603 ordinary shares
ES circuit leadframes and of no par value,
investment holding paid up to USD4,071,281
AHENEHKOIRE 1063 REEEERR
REEER BRRFLNBIET
REEF (RI) ERAE  PRC Distribution of stamped USD3,000,000
Noteq) (Ff##c) # leadframes and moulds 3000000 7T
FHERIBERIE
Notes: Htat -
(a) Operating principally in the PRC. (a)
(b) The deferred shares, which are held by the Group, are practically of (b)

no economic value.

Place of establishment/
incorporation

(0 A foreign wholly-owned corporate.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end

of the year.
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Principal activities

IRRE

37. EEMBARFE
UWTARRARNR-_ZE—ZTFER_TZT
NFNA=Z+HEEZEAEEH ¥
E EENEBBZMBRARAFB EF

BB ENBAR ZRZEHB
RAB -BRIEZEME  ZSHERF

TEREEMBA ML E -

Paid up registered capital/
Issued share capital
BHiRES/
BETRA

(0)

=
==
S

2

B
i%]—(

Proportion of nominal value of
registered capital/
issued share capital held by
FREMER/
BRTRAZEELH
Company subsidiary

AR HELT

2010
-g-3%
%

2010
535

244 9756
100 -
- 100
664 336
- 100

TERPEELE-

HMAEERAZREERND BR L
IR EEE -

RINEBERE-
FR-BERBRARBTEME
%O



FINANCIAL SUMMARY
B2

The financial summary of the Group for the past five financial years, as
extracted from the Group’s published audited consolidated financial
statements, are set out below:

TURNOVER AND (LOSS) PROFIT FOR THE YEAR
ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS

NTABEaAEEENEEERRAMH
BRZAGEBEDEMBRFEZHMBHE -

EXERAFERRELG(ER) EFN

For the year ended 30th April
BZNA=1HIEE
2007 2008 2009 2010

—2TtF “FT/\F “TINF —2-BF
HKS'M HKS'M HKS'M HK$'M
BEAT BEST BEET BEER

Turnover B 306 337 275
(Loss) profit before taxation K 75 AT (B 18) % A (102) (43) (95)
Taxation credit (charge) MEERE(ZHE) 21 @) Q)
(Loss) profit for the year INF E IR R AL

attributableto shareholders (E518)% 7 (81) (44) (96)
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ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE

At 30th April

RMUA=1+H
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
ZEERF ZTTEF —TE)N\F NG T —FTF

HKS'M HKS'M HKS'M HKS'M HK$'M
BEAT BEAT BEAT BEST BEER
(Restated) (Restated)
(k&) (KEF)

Property, plant and equipment  #)3 - #2825 241 162 122
Interest in an associate BN AR - - -
Investment in convertible ARREB LIRS E
preferred shares - loan portion ~ — B 3k &f 5y - - -
Available-for-sale investments At $5ERE 3 - -
Derivative financial instruments T4 £ T A - - 13
Other receivable H Y ERIE - - -
Current assets mENEE 223 203 168
Current liabilities mEAaE (164) (152) (116)
303 213 187
Share capital RN 61 61 61
Share premium and reserves %173 (B R f 5 224 148 122
Shareholders'fund BRES 285 209 183
Long term borrowings REEE 13 - -
Accrued expenses FEETER 5 4 4
303 213 187
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